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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Willie International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) will be held at 30/F China United Centre, 28
Marble Road, North Point, Hong Kong on Tuesday, 2 June 2009 at 9:00 a.m. for the

purpose of transacting the following business:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

I. To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial statements and the

reports of the directors and auditor of the Company for the year ended 3|
December 2008.

2. To re-elect Mr. Wen Louis and the retiring directors, Mr. Chuang Yueheng,

Henry, Mr. Wong Ying Seung, Asiong and Mr. Wang Lin as directors of the

Company and to authorise the board of directors of the Company to fix their

remuneration.

3. To re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as auditor of the Company and to

authorise the board of directors of the Company to fix their remuneration.

As special businesses, to consider and if thought fit, pass with or without

modification the following resolutions as ordinary resolutions:

4. “THAT:

(A) subject to paragraph (C) below, the exercise by the directors of the

Company (the “Directors”) during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares in the capital of the Company and to make or grant
offers, agreements and options (including warrants, bonds and
debentures convertible into shares of the Company) which might require
the exercise of such powers be and is hereby generally and

unconditionally approved;

the Directors be and are authorised during the Relevant Period to make
or grant offers, agreements and options (including warrants, bonds and
debentures convertible into shares of the Company) which might require
the exercise of such powers during or after the end of the Relevant

Period;
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
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ERBEE

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an
option or otherwise) by the Directors pursuant to the approval in
paragraphs (A) and (B), otherwise than (i) a Rights Issue (as hereafter
defined) or (ii) the exercise of rights of subscription or conversion under
the terms of any existing warrants, bonds, debentures, notes or other
securities issued by the Company which carry rights to subscribe for or
are convertible into shares of the Company or (iii) an issues of shares
under any option scheme or similar arrangement for the time being
adopted for the grant or issue to the employees of the Company and/or
any of its subsidiaries or any other eligible person(s) of shares or right to
acquire shares of the Company or (iv) an issue of shares as scrip
dividend pursuant to the Articles of Association, from time to time, shall
not exceed 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of
the Company in issue as at the date of passing this resolution and the

said approval shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the time of the passing of this

resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general
meeting of the Company is required by the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company or any applicable law of

Hong Kong to be held; and

(i) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this
resolution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the

Company in general meeting.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period fixed by the
Directors to holders of shares on the register of members on a fixed
record date in proportion to their then holdings of such shares (subject
to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors may deem
necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having
regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of any relevant
jurisdiction, or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or

any stock exchange).”

5 “THAT:

(A)

subject to paragraph (C) below, the exercise by the Directors during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all powers of the Company to
purchase securities in the capital of the Company on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange™) or any other stock
exchange on which the securities of the Company may be listed and
recognised by the Securities and Futures Commission and the Stock
Exchange for this purpose, and that the exercise by the Directors of all
powers of the Company to purchase such securities are subject to and in
accordance with all applicable laws, be and is hereby generally and

unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (A) shall be in addition to any other
authorisation given to the Directors and shall authorise the Directors on
behalf of the Company during the Relevant Period to procure the
Company to purchase its securities at a price determined by the

Directors;

the aggregate nominal amount of securities in the capital of the Company
purchased or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be purchased by
the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (A) during the
Relevant Period shall not exceed 0% of the aggregate nominal amount
of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of passing this

resolution and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRRBFREEE
(D) for the purposes of this resolution: D) MEAAZEME
“Relevant Period” means the period from the time of the passing of this [EEHBERNRERARE AR
resolution until whichever is the earliest of: ET=EFRPELE LS
Al :
() the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company; () ARATEBRRBFAEER
B

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general (i) ARANBRAMALERZAA
meeting of the Company is required by the memorandum and FBBEMERZEZIREAR
articles of association of the Company or any applicable law of AR TRERRBEFEAEH
Hong Kong to be held; and HARR AR LR+ %

(i) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this (i) ARARRERRAEG LBA
resolution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the ERRBRRESE T NRE
Company in general meeting.” ROV KR - |

6. “THAT conditional upon the passing of the ordinary resolution no. 4 and 5 6. [BRFLNFARFELBAZRER

above, the aggregate nominal amount of the shares in the capital of the BE - ARARBRRE D F5ERE
Company which are purchased by the Company pursuant to and in REERLAIREATHORNEEE &
accordance with the said resolution no. 5 shall be added to the aggregate FAEFRBEEBRE EXF4BEEBRE
nominal amount of the share capital of the Company that may be allotted or RMAERELEGERBRTIRSE
agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted by the Directors BNARRRAAEE AT AN
pursuant to and in accordance with the ordinary resolution no. 4 above, BIGBEERBATNAZRERARAE
provided that such extended amount shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate BIIRABEBERN10% °

nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date of

passing of this resolution.”

8  WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2008 Annual Report




Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRRBFASES

“THAT the existing scheme mandate limit in respect of the granting of options 7. [BIEBEAARR_TZ-_F+—A=
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the share option scheme TRERMMERE S ([BRES])
adopted by the Company on 20 November 2002 (the “Share Option REBRERBRLAIKRNARETE
Scheme") be refreshed and renewed provided that the total number of shares BEBRBTUEHRES  EREBR
of the Company which may be allotted and issued pursuant to the grant or B EBRNSITERRE (TRERERE
exercise of the options under the Share Option Scheme (excluding options BREFE AR E - mARITH - T8
previously granted, outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised under the Share KM BT B AME) M rl B % I
Option Scheme), shall not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue TRARB KRG B2 - TEHEANER
as at the date of passing this resolution (the “Refreshed Limit") and that the ARBRERDETHARAKRNDH
Directors be and are hereby authorised, subject to compliance with the Rules 10% ((EEHRE])  MEFZRER
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, to grant options B ENeHRmES ETRANERL
under the Share Option Scheme up to the Refreshed Limit and to exercise all T BEEREHIARESEZELEN
the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with shares of the REBEIIE  YITEART S
Company pursuant to the exercise of such options.” BEZSERENTERSE  BTRE
BARRRG - |

By order of the Board BEEEH

Willie International Holdings Limited BAEBRERERA

Chan Mee Sze REWE

Company Secretary RERB

Hong Kong, 29 April 2009 BE —EENFWNAZTNA

Registered Office and Head Office: AR ERERENRER

32/F, China United Centre B

28 Marble Road Bl

North Point HEB28%
Hong Kong EEDLI2E

RABEAR EFEHNEHTEF (HK
Bt RKEXL  THEIERINE
E)ROEBLHHTEE (BEERL R
A BRTEEREBBATLE) B -

As at the date of this notice, the Board comprises four executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Chuang Yueheng, Henry, Mr. King Phillip, Mr. Wong Ying Seung, Asiong and Mr. Wang Lin
and four independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Lin Wai Yi, Mr. Liu Jian, Mr.

Wen Louis and Mr.Yau Yan Ming, Raymond.

008 4% EAERZERERAT 9



Notice of Annual General Meeting
BRRERBFREBEE

Notes: Bt

A form of proxy to be used for the meeting is enclosed. 1. BERENASHRREZERR -
Any member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is 2. FAABRIEAEREE LRENEALR
entitled to appoint another person as his proxy to attend and vote instead of ARE HERZEHAMALTRAER
him. On a poll votes may be given either personally or by proxy. A proxy need FRELEBRRAGREELRE -
not be a member of the Company. A member may appoint more than one BRERABIAZRAEER - TERK
proxy to attend on the same occasion. BERKDAIRE - —BREAIERME—
ENFEERRERER-RREE -
To be valid, the instrument appointing a proxy must be in writing under the 3. REZAXRRUEBZEATIEZEA
hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing, or if the EHEARBENREARZE  WEEA
appointor is a corporation, either under seal or under the hand of an officer or BAABE - BZAMEDE AL
attorney duly authorised. BEAREBEARENRBARER
Z IRBXN-

4. The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other 4. REXZEXRBERLEENREERE
authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that R (A AEHLAEARER
power or authority shall be deposited at the Company’s share registrar and ANZERESIREGEER AR
transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Rooms BIRREERBATRRERZREH
1806-1807, |8/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong not EfmMEe (BEBERME) EERTEE
less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or adjourned 48/NESRT - REARD AN RN é%ﬂ&ﬂ
meeting or poll (as the case may be) at which the person named in such FREBTREHRZLERALA - it
instrument proposes to vote, and in default the instrument of proxy shall not REBEL :—:Eﬁkﬁm%ﬁé\*ﬂqﬂ/bm
be treated as valid. 181806-1807% * TAEH  BRIKERZ

ERBAIBENY -
5. Where there are joint registered holders of any share, any one of such 5. fMEEMBROMBEEZIFAA  AIE

—2BEABTRFRRZRARAE

persons may vote at the meeting, either personally or by proxy, in respect of

such share as if he were solely entitled thereto but if more than one of such EXGLHEERORE  BUOEKLE
joint holders be present at any meeting personally or by proxy, that one of the FAROHEOE—FEEA  EMBRE—BZ
said persons so present whose name stands first on the register in respect of EMAREAREBIZRRERELE

Ag BERARENHEAT  REE
BRREMAEREUNRTEABERE
%HX{ 7J<°

such share shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof.

10 WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2008 Annual Report




THEYEAR IN REVIEW

Last year in the 2007 annual report of the Company, | mentioned of an
"“unprecedented turbulence in the financial markets” in the second half of the year
(2007), and unfortunately it continued through 2008 and into 2009. As the year
progressed, a series of problems appeared within many of the world's top financial
institutions. This led to a dysfunctional credit market which almost became non-
functional. By the end of the year, housing prices and stock prices started tumbling,
which in turn produced a paralyzing fear and a freefall in business activities. The
slowing business activities together with declining consumer spending led to even

greater fear — an unending spiral which feeds on itself.

There is however a gleam of hope. We have witnessed oil price which soaring to
over US$160 per barrel only to drop to below US$50 per barrel as a result of
falling demand. The downward spiral has also spurred various governments to take
massive actions by pumping billions of dollars into their respective economies. At
the date hereof, to say that we have “seen the worst” may be premature but we are

seeing some signs of stabilisation in the financial markets.

China which hosted the 2008 Olympic Games, presented us with an unforgettable
opening ceremony and during the same year marked its first spacewalk as astronaut
Zhai Zhigang floated in space for |3 minutes, has not been immune to the global
financial tsunami. Both China's exports and imports have fallen substantially and with
more than 15% (or 20 million) of nations migrant workers losing their jobs. Premier
Wen Jiabao has promised that “the government stood ready to unveil additional
stimulus measures should the current €460 billion package of tax cuts and
infrastructure spending prove insufficient to raising growth to about 8 percent” and

that “the country could be the first to recover from the global financial crisis”.

Hong Kong has seen its share of financial crisis in the past, but our people has always
stood up to the challenge and we have always looked obstacles in the face and
overcome them. As premier Wen stated “with the central government ... firmly
support the work of HKSAR and with joint efforts, Hong Kong people could turn
present difficulties into opportunities... and achieve sustainable development” and
indeed, we have already seen mainland investments in the local housing markets,

businesses, and infrastructures.

Chairman’s Statement
FERE
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

During the year, we took a conservative approach in implementing our strategies.
Despite all the investment proposals we received, we did not invest in any long term
projects. The Company strengthened its income base through the acquisitions and
the subsequent lease of investment properties. We made several acquisitions within
our current location of China United Centre, including Room 2201 to 2203 and
Room 2205 to 2209, the entire of 29th, 30th, 31st and 32nd Floor. Except for the
29th Floor which was purchased by cash, all the considerations were satisfied by the
issuance of convertible notes or consideration shares of the Company. In September
2008, the Company acquired an income producing commercial building in
Guangzhou through the issuance of shares of the Company. The Company also
acquired the entire interests in a yacht and certain marine facilities for cash
consideration in order to generate rental income by the leasing of the yacht and

marine facilities on time sharing basis.

In addition to the recent acquisitions stated above, the Company also holds a
portfolio of investment properties from prior years' purchases, money lending,
investment grade art objects, and collectable paintings. In the midst of the financial
tsunami and faced with great global uncertainties ahead, we have taken a very
conservative approach in evaluating and assessing the fair value of the portfolio and
have reduced the asset value by approximately HK$215 million accordingly. Having
done that, we like to point that we continue to have a positive outlook for the
economy and believe that the portfolios could return to profit when the economy

recovers.

The Company has invested in the stocks of listed companies in Singapore, USA, and
Hong Kong as well as derivative contracts tied to stocks of USA and Hong Kong. As
a result of the global financial tsunami, the investment portfolio has suffered both
realised and unrealised losses of approximately HK$384 million and HK$ 166 million
respectively. At 31 December 2008, the outstanding exposure to derivative
contracts amounted to approximately HK$12 million. The Directors will continue to

monitor the investment portfolio and take appropriate actions as necessary.

12 WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2008 Annual Report
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We have proceeded with the harvest of lumber for our forestry project. Most of
our lumber is destined to be used for crates and furniture. Due to the slowdown in
economy, harvest of lumber has been kept to a minimum. Since the project is
managed by a third party on a profit sharing basis without cost to the Company,
although the amount of lumber harvested did not reach a breakeven amount, the
Company is not expected to suffer any loss. The Company has appointed an
independent appraiser to assess the market value of the forestry project at the
balance sheet date, no impairment is considered necessary. The lumber will be

harvested in greater quantities once the economy begins to pick up.

FINAL RESULTS

As already mentioned in our profit warning announcement dated 12 March 2009,
the continued deterioration in the equity market caused by the global economic and
financial tsunami has adversely and significantly affected the Group's operating
results for the year ended 31 December 2008 which recorded a net loss of
approximately HK$798 million as compared to a net loss of approximately HK$198
million in last year. The huge increase in net loss for the year was mainly due to the
net realised and unrealised loss on investments at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$550 million (2007: approximately HK$225 million), impairment
losses on certain assets of approximately HK$26 million (2007: Nil), net losses
arising from changes in fair value of investment properties of approximately HK$48
million (2007: net gains of approximately HK$4 | million), allowance for doubtful debts
of approximately HK$ 103 million (2007: HK$ 14 million), bad debts of approximately
HK$52 million (2007: Nil) and deferred tax charge of approximately HK$ I million
(2007: Nil). Accordingly, basic loss per share for the year was HK$5.09 (2007
(restated): HK$7.75).

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended

31 December 2008 (2007: Nil).

Chairman’s Statement
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Capital Resources

During the year, the Company had completed one share placement for 303,580,000
new shares at HK$0.17 each and two rights issues resulting in the issuance of
[,517,931,298 rights shares on an one for one basis at HK$0.22 each in January
2008 and 1,749,721,295 rights shares on the basis of five rights shares for every two
adjusted shares held at a subscription price of HK$0.15 per rights share in August
2008, raising a total additional capital (before issue expenses) of approximately
HK$52 million and an aggregate sum of approximately HK$596 million respectively.
Furthermore, the Company has issued an aggregate of 960 million new shares and
the 3-year non-interest bearing convertible notes at an aggregate principal amount
of approximately HK$86.9 million to satisfy the acquisition cost of approximately
HK$219 million for various investment properties in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Further details are disclosed in the section headed “Material Acquisitions”.

During the year, apart from additions through acquisition of subsidiaries, the Group
invested approximately HK$38 million and HK$2| million in property, plant and
equipment and other investment in artworks respectively. It also invested
approximately HK$86 million in other investment properties located in Hong Kong.
These capital expenditures were mostly financed from internal resources and partly

from bank borrowings.

At 31 December 2008, the Group's total equity amounted to approximately
HKS$ 1,541 million (2007: approximately HK$1,486 million) and the Group had net
current assets of approximately HK$754 million including cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$ 167 million (2007: approximately HK$ 1,048 million including
cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$304 million). The Group continued to
maintain a single-digit gearing ratio of 8.2% (2007: 2.5%), which is computed on the
basis of net borrowings to total equity, and current ratio of 13.3 times (2007: 6.8

times).
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In December 2008, the Group obtained additional secured loan of HK$40 million
from banks. During the year ended 3| December 2008, the Group repaid
approximately HK$23 million secured bank loan and HK$150 million unsecured
other loans. At 31 December 2008, the Group had secured bank borrowings of
approximately HK$293 million (2007: bank and other borrowings of approximately
HK$342 million) of which 8.3%, 8.5%, 23.6% and 59.6% (2007: 47.1%, 3.3%, 10.7%
and 38.9% respectively) are repayable within one year, in the second year, between
the third and fifth years and over five years respectively. The Group’s bank
borrowings carrying interest rates were calculated with reference to prime rate and
HIBOR and denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group did not have any financial

instruments used for hedging purpose.

As most of the Group’s transactions and bank balances were denominated in Hong

Kong dollars, the Group's exposure to foreign exchange rate was minimal.

Capital Reorganisation

On 4 August 2008, a special resolution for approving the capital reorganisation,
which involved capital reduction and share consolidation of five reduced shares into
one adjusted shares was passed at an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company. Consequently, the issued share capital of the Company was reduced from
HK$349,944,259.50 to HK$69,988,851.90 divided into 699,888,519 adjusted shares
and a total credit of approximately HK$279,955,407.60 arisen as a result of such
capital reduction, which in its entirety, was credited to the share premium account of

the Company.

On 4 December 2008, a special resolution was passed at an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company to approve another capital reorganisation, which involved
the capital reduction and share consolidation of ten reduced shares into one
adjusted share. As a result, the issued share capital of the Company was reduced
from HK$389,960,981 to approximately HK$38,996,098.10 divided into 389,960,981
adjusted shares, giving rise to a total credit of approximately HK$350,964,882.90,

which in its entirety, be credited to the share premium account of the Company.
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Issuance and Termination of Convertible Notes

In May 2008, the Group entered into three sales and purchase agreements to
acquire three companies for the entire of 30th to 32nd Floor of China United
Centre at North Point, Hong Kong and the considerations of which were satisfied by
the issuance of the 3-year non-interest bearing convertible notes at an aggregate
principal amount of approximately HK$86.9 million. In October 2008, an ordinary
resolution was passed at an extraordinary general meeting of the Company to
terminate such convertible notes in consideration of an issue of 650,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company in order to reduce the liabilities of the Company

and in turn to improve the financial position of the Company.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS

During the year, the Group acquired various commercial investment properties and
certain assets in Hong Kong and PRC to strengthen its income base by generating a
stable source of rental income. In April 2008, the Group acquired the entire interest
in Allied Well Development Limited for the principal assets of its subsidiary, being
Room 2201 to 2203 and Room 2205 to 2209 on 22nd Floor of China United
Centre, 28 Marble Road, North Point, Hong Kong, at a consideration of
HK$20,160,000 which was satisfied by the issuance and allotment of 160,000,000

consideration shares of the Company.

In May 2008, the Group entered into three sales and purchase agreements to
acquire the entire interests in Glamourous Investments Limited, Best Inspire Limited
and Bright Majestic Limited for the principal assets of their subsidiaries, being the
entire of 30th, 31st and 32nd Floors of China United Centre, 28 Marble Road,
North Point, Hong Kong, at the aggregate consideration of approximately HK$86.9
million which was satisfied by the issue of the 3-year non-interest bearing
convertible notes. Nevertheless, in order to reduce the liabilities of the Company,
the Company subsequently terminated these convertible notes in the consideration
of an issue and allotment of 650,000,000 settlement shares of the Company at an
issue price of HK$0.14 per share in November 2008.

16 WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2008 Annual Report

RITRRILTRRRE

R-ZEFNFLA  ARERIT=NEEHH
WBE=MOF UABRGUREBELAZEES
DIENREEE  KERETAZARY
86,900,000/ Lz = F HES AR TR - 1
“EENETA AREARRREAIASRE
ERARRRIZSTTRRER  RERET
650,000,000/ "2 A1 @A - PAR A AR
BE - EMEERRR NI BAMDR o

EpNE

FN - AEBERARTENBEZERERE
WMERETEE  WERBERSTR  2E
BEZWAER - RZZTTN\FHA - A5H
VBB ERER AR 2 HER - EHBA
A ETEEERRKERALAREE28RER
522182201 %2203 222052 2209% - (X
{8 520,160,000/ 7T * AN R %47 REC#E
160,000,0008 R BB X1 -

RZZEZENEFHA AEEFU=-BEEWH
# B Glamourous
Limited * Best Inspire Limitedf% Bright
Majestic Limitedz 25 #% - EWBAA 2
IEEERBAERABILASEEBTEREFL
30 BNBRIVEBREz 2 H G - BRE
#)/86,900,0008 T - FBRET=FHELT
BMRERSM - AW BROARAIERE K
AREEREZEVARER  REARZ-T
ENET—AUER14BTZETERITR
fid % 650,000,000k KA GIEER M ©

Investments




In September 2008, the Group acquired the entire interest in Jet Star Industries
Limited for its principal asset, being a 20-storey commercial building, namely Jifu
Plaza, situated at No. 103 Shibapu Road, Liwan District, Guangzhou City, Guangdong
Province, PRC at the consideration of HK$ 112,000,000 which was satisfied by the
issue and allotment of 800,000,000 consideration shares of the Company. In the
same month, the Company also announced to acquire the entire of 29th Floor of
China United Centre, 28 Marble Road, North Point, Hong Kong at the cash
consideration of HK$58,880,000 which was partly financed from internal resources

and partly from bank borrowings.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group also acquired the entire
interest in Uprite Limited for a yacht and certain marine facilities at the cash

consideration of HK$94,000,000 which was financed by internal resources.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2008, certain assets of the Group with an aggregate carrying value
of approximately HK$636 million (2007: approximately HK$344 million) have been
pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2008, the Group had capital commitments in respect of acquisition
of property, plant and equipment and investment properties contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial statements amounting to approximately

HK$36 million (2007: approximately HK$58 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the balance sheet date, the Company had provided corporate guarantees for
banking facilities amounting to HK$296,488,000 (2007: HK$216,920,000) granted to
its subsidiaries, which were utilised to the extent of HK$250,951,000 (2007:
HK$191,648,000). The directors assessed the overall exposure of the corporate
guarantees granted by the Company and considered that the fair value of such

corporate guarantees is immaterial to the financial statements of the Company.
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EMPLOYEES

At 31 December 2008, the Group employed a total of 31 employees (2007: 27
employees). The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and prevailing market standards. Employee benefits include a
medical insurance coverage, a mandatory provident fund and a share option

scheme.

PROSPECT

Previously | mentioned, that we have “seen the worst” of the financial tsunami may
be premature but we remain positive that the local economy and stock market will
survive. As premier Wen said “ ... Hong Kong people could turn present difficulties
into opportunities... and achieve sustainable development”. More than ever, we are
faced with a tight credit market, we are faced with global uncertainties and talks of
“financial reform”, and we are faced with a very dynamic investment environment.
The Company is strong in asset and will take a conservative approach to investment

opportunities as they may arise.

APPRECIATION
We would like to take this opportunity to thank the shareholders of the Company
for their continuing support and we also thank our dedicated staff for their

contributions to the success of the Group.

By order of the Board

Chuang Yueheng, Henry

Chairman

20 April 2009
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chuang Yueheng, Henry, aged 53, was appointed as the Chairman of the
Company in 2002. He holds Masters degrees in Petroleum Engineering and in
Business Administration from the University of Southern California in the United
States of America. In 2007, Dubna University of Russia awarded Mr. Chuang an
Honorary Doctorate degree in Petroleum Engineering in recognition of his
achievements in the field of petroleum engineering. He has over 16 years of

experience in corporate finance and development.

Mr. King Phillip, aged 38, was appointed as the Managing Director of the Company
in 2005. He holds a Master's degree in Business Administration from the University
of San Francisco in the United States of America. He has over 9 years of

experience in real estate investment, management and development.

Mr. Wong Ying Seung, Asiong, aged 58, was appointed as the Director of the
Company in 2002. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Chemical Engineering from the
University of London in the United Kingdom. He has over 29 years of experience in

banking and investment.

Mr.Wang Lin, aged 54, was appointed as the Director of the Company in 2006. He
studied Electronics from the Yunnan Radio and TV University. He is an Economist by

profession with over 31 years of experience in accounting and finance.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Lin Wai Yi, aged 45, was appointed as the Director of the Company in 2005. She
holds Bachelor’s, Master's and Doctorate degrees all in Chinese Laws from the
Beijing University in the People’s Republic of China. She has been a practising
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1994 and has been registered as a solicitor in England

and Wales since 1996. She is the founder of Messrs. Deca Lin & Partners.

Mr. Liu Jian, aged 40, was appointed as the Director of the Company in 2006. He
holds a Bachelor's degree in Electrical Engineering from the Fudan University,
Shanghai in the People’s Republic of China as well as a Master’s degree in Chinese
Law from the Jilin University in the People's Republic of China. He is a Senior
Economist by profession and has over |6 years of experience in corporate finance
and investment banking. Mr. Liu is the Vice President of the Century Securities
Company Limited and the Chairman of Beijing National Net Union Hi-tech
Company Limited in Beijing.
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Mr.Wen Louis, aged 74, was appointed as the Director of the Company in 2009. He
holds a Bachelor's degree in Engineering from the City University of New York. He
has an extensive experience in engineering, marketing and advertising in the United
States where he held senior positions in J. Walter Thompson Co. and Dow Jones
International Marketing Services for a number of years. He is an executive director
of Forefront Group Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Mr.Yau Yan Ming, Raymond, aged 40, was appointed as the Director of the Company
in 2006. He holds a Master’s degree in Science majoring in Japanese business studies
and Bachelor's degree in Business Administration majoring in accounting in the
United States of America. He is a Certified Public Accountant both in Hong Kong
and in the United States of America. He is also an associate member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over || years of working experience in areas of auditing,
accounting, taxation, company secretarial, corporate finance and financial
management. He is an executive director of iMerchants Limited and an independent
non-executive director of Grandtop International Holdings Limited, both are publicly

listed company in Hong Kong.

20  WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2008 Annual Report

BREE  BEV4R R_TTNFEZAER
ARBEE  HHACity University of New
YorkTI2EE+ 2] - REXEEESHEA T
K Dow Jones International Marketing
ServicestHEEBZF - AELR  mEkE
LESHETE EELR BRARHEE
ARAR (—HRBEMERIMERAR L
MZRE) ZHITES -

BRARE  RF405 R-FTTAFEERT
RADRESE - RREXEEERT S (X
EEABERT) RIBEEE T B0 (TEE
i) RATEREEEIMEEH  TAEE
EHMAERXBEEHMAETEE - HNE
% &5t B DENE  CRMB MK
ERTEZBAT-FER  TORAEEL
MARZEEERAR MLEERERERAF
ZHTESRBUFRTES -

Jilg)S

N

{ my




The Board of Directors submits their annual report together with the audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group™), is principally engaged in the
business of property investment, investment in securities trading, money lending,
investment holding and acquiring, exploring and developing natural resources. Details
of the principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set

out in note |6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 are set out in the

consolidated income statement on page 38.

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of a dividend.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to HK$290,000.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set

out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past

five financial years is set out on pages 122 and 123.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of significant changes in the investment properties and property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in notes 14 and |5 respectively

to the consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the major properties of the Group as at 3|1 December 2008 are set

out on pages 124 to 128.
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BORROWINGS
Details of the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group are set out in note 22 to

the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set

out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements. During the year, no share options were granted
and exercised under the share option scheme of the Company. As at 31 December

2008, there was no outstanding share option.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Company purchased a total of 5
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) at an aggregate

consideration of HK$0.202 and the details are set out below:

B
BEREASE A BERFEBIANGRAYBRE
BisE22

L&
ARERFAZBAEHFEHNEE M HR
K25 ©

BRE
ARRBIEN S 2 HFENF A M BRI
§27 - REANFBIRESE - FARERH
REEABRE R-TTN\FT-A=1
—R YERRITEZBEE -

RE - LEAREES
REE-FENFTA=+-ALFE &
REARERBEZHMERADE (B U
B {E0.2028 THE A HERA R ABRASE
BEEIOETZ EBK - HEMT -

Aggregate
consideration

paid (excluding

Number of shares expenses)

Date repurchased Price per share ENARE
B BERHHE BRER (FEERX)
27 June 2008 —EENFRAZ+TLEH | HK$0.042 &7 HK$0.042 BT
24 November 2008 “EEN\F+-A-t@OA 4 HK$0.040TT  HK$0.160 87T
5 HK$0.202 /8 7T

The repurchased shares were cancelled and the issued share capital of the Company

was diminished by the nominal value thereof.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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OPTIONS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Movements in share option scheme and convertible notes during the year ended 31
December 2008 are set out in notes 27 and 24 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively. The Company or any of its subsidiaries has no outstanding

options or similar rights as at 31 December 2008.

WARRANTS
The outstanding warrants and the adjustments of which are set out in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements. During the year, no warrant was exercised by

the warrant holders.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report

were:
Executive Directors

Chuang Yueheng, Henry

King Phillip

Lo Kan Sun (resigned with effect from 23 April 2008)
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong

Wang Lin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Nakajima Toshiharu (resigned with effect from 23 April 2008)
Lin Wai Yi

Liu Jian

Shum Ming Choy

Yau Yan Ming, Raymond

Alternate Director

Lee Kwan Ching (ceased to be alternate director to Lo Kan Sun with effect from 23
April 2008 and ceased to be an alternate director to Wong Ying Seung, Asiong with
effect from |7 November 2008)

In accordance with Article 120 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr.
Chuang Yueheng, Henry, Mr. Wong Ying Seung, Asiong and Mr. Wang Lin retire by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.
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The term of office of each independent non-executive Director is for a period of
three years but subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. The Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting do not have service contracts which are not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of the directors and
chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code™), were as

follows:-

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the Company as at 3|

December 2008:

Nature of interest

BEME

Name of director

ExEE

BEUFRTESZERR=F - HAREAR
RAZBHERBARKRRAE LBRSER
BEEL REERRBFAGLERAESR
BECESE  WEERRARIZAR—FAK
IEMBAHE CAEMERN <RBEEAH -

ESRBROREBRG <R RKXE

RZZEEN\F+-A=+—0 £ARAIEZER
FETRABRAATHEEEEE (EXR
Hr BRI ([ExRBE G FEXVE)
2R HERNREFTEEERARER
BEEDLEENEINMEFE 2 B LMk
FRBELMETACESETBLRTH L EE
SRI(2ESFA]) BREAD B R T2
BRABT

W-BEN\E+-A=+—0  RELTERE
BRIEERG 2 FANT

Approximate
Number of percentage of

shareholding
RESNEIL

ordinary shares held

FEERRYE

Chuang Yueheng, Henry Beneficial interest

HRE

ERES

23,353,440 5.99%

At no time during the year was the Company, any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares

in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company or
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS” AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2008, the following interests and short positions of 5% or more
of the issued share capital and underlying shares of the Company (other than a
director or chief executive of the Company) were recorded in the register of

interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Directors’ Report
EEEWE

ESReNzER
BEXAFEINFAEMER  HEEFAR
Al HERARISRMBRRIZ2ET L MARA
EEREPERARERAEANEGCERR
w e

TERREREMATRROREER S
z&&&%?

ZE\FT-A=+-R ARAREE
ﬁ&ﬁﬁuw%%mwﬁﬁﬁz@ﬁiﬁmﬁ
BETUTRARKRARDERTRARAER
(A A% L2 B RAE

Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name Nature of interest shares held shareholding
ExEB BEME FREEREE REHSOBEIL
Heritage International Holdings Limited (“Heritage”) Interest of controlled corporation 38,002,000 9.75%
EEERARRAA(TRE]) R rEER
Mascotte Holdings Limited Beneficial interest 33,000,000 8.46%
SHEEEEAR Eatln
Radford Capital Investment Limited (“Radford”) Interest of controlled corporation 20,343,014 5.22%

RBEAREERDR (%R R AE RS

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, no person, other than the
directors of the Company, whose interests are set out herein this report, had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the

Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “Scheme™) in Hong Kong to all staff. Under
the Scheme, employer and employees are each required to make contributions to

the scheme at 5% of the employees' relevant income.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 3| December 2008, excluding the net losses from the sale of
investments at fair value through profit or loss , the percentages of the Group’s
turnover attributable to its largest customer and five largest customers were 3%

and 36% respectively.

Heritage, one of the substantial shareholders of the Company, and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Heritage Group”) is one of the five largest customers of
the Group referred to above. During the year, Radford, one of the substantial
shareholders of the Company (owned more than 5% of the Company's issued share
capital as at 31 December 2008) had interests in Heritage of less than 10% issued
share capital of Heritage. In the opinion of the directors, transactions with Heritage
Group were carried out on terms no less favourable than terms with independent

third parties.

As the Group had no significant purchases during the year, the information on major

suppliers is not presented.

Save as aforementioned, at no time during the year did a director, an associate of a
director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors
of the Company owned more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) have

any material interest in any of the Group's five largest customers.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during

the vyear.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association of
the Company, or the laws of Hong Kong, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT RANRERE

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 BE-ZZ\G+-A=+—HLEFE £&2
December 2008. BERERANRERSE -

AUDITOR R

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 ARABEZZTREFTA=T-RLFE
December 2006 were audited by Messrs. Moores Rowland Mazars, while those for ~ ZErB M EREAEL R « SELHAMEKA
the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2008 were audited by Mazars CPA Limited, B MBE_TTLEFR-TTN\FTZA

Certified Public Accountants. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming St-BEFEZHBERRABEESTME

annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as  BFTERAR (BBHELA) B - KAH

auditor of the Company. BREERRBFAG LRE-BIER &
BEESHNEEMERLARARARZZH
fib

On behalf of the Board REEZE

Willie International Holdings Limited BAERERERA

King Phillip BEFpKE

Managing Director SRE

Hong Kong, 20 April 2009 &8 —EENFWNAZ-TH
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to maintain
high standards of corporate governance, integrity and to ensure transparent and
adequate levels of disclosure. The Company has complied with all Code Provisions
set out in Appendix |4 Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code") of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the financial
year ended 3| December 2008.

The Board will continue to review and recommend such steps as appropriate in a

timely manner in order to comply with the requirements of the Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has complied with the requirements for directors’ securities
transactions stated in the “"Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code™) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. All Directors
of the Company have confirmed that they have complied with the requirements as

set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2008.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING
The Board is comprised of eight members as at the date of this report and their

positions are as follows;
Executive Directors

Chuang Yueheng, Henry (Chairman)
King Phillip (Managing Director)
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong

Wang Lin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Lin Wai Yi

Liu Jian

Shum Ming Choy

Yau Yan Ming, Raymond
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The Board is responsible for overseeing the overall business strategy, management
planning and control of the Company. The management is responsible for day-to-day
management of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group™). Each
Director has accumulated sufficient and valuable experience to carry out their duties
in an efficient and effective manner. Details of the backgrounds and qualifications of
the Directors are set out in the section headed "“Biographies of Directors” on pages
19 and 20 of the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2008 (the “Annual
Report”). None of the members of the Board have, in any respect, relation to each

other in any circumstances.

All Directors of the Company have acted in good faith for the best interests of the
Company and the stakeholders of the Company. Other than the statutory duties
imposed on each of them, all of the Directors have exercised due care in monitoring
the corporate matters of the Company and have provided grave concern, sufficient

time and attention to all the significant issues and affairs of the Group.

For the sake of transparency and independency of the management of the Company,
duties of the Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company are segregated
and not executed by the same individual. The Chairman is responsible for the
management of the Board and external corporate communication. The Managing
Director is responsible for the day-to-day operation, among other matters, the

implementation of overall strategy of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors were appointed by reference to their
respective qualification and experience to ensure that they are competent to
perform their duties and to protect the interest of the stakeholders. The
independent non-executive Directors were appointed with specific written terms by
the Company and they are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
the independent non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Board assessed and concluded that all the independent non-

executive Directors are independent under the definition of the Listing Rules.
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The Board held twelve full board meetings in 2008. Details of the attendance of the

Board members are as follows:

Executive Directors Attendance
Chuang Yueheng, Henry 5/12
King Phillip 12/12
Lo Kan Sun (resigned with effect from 23 April 2008) 112
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong 12/12
Wang Lin [/12
Independent Non-executive Directors

Nakajima Toshiharu (resigned with effect from 23 April 2008) [/12
Lin WaiYi 12/12
Liu Jian 8/12
Shum Ming Choy 12/12
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond 12/12

Save for the above board meetings held in 2008, meetings of the Directors were
held to discuss and transact other special businesses. The Board members are
provided with appropriate and sufficient information in a timely manner to keep
abreast of the Group's latest developments. All businesses transacted at the board

meetings are properly documented and recorded.

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive and formal induction to
ensure that he/she has an appropriate understanding of (i) the businesses and
operations of the Group; (i) his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements; (i) the Compliance Manual of the

Company and; (iv) the Model Code.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee™)
was formed in June 2005. The Company formulated written terms of reference for
the Remuneration Committee and the adopted terms of reference is in compliance

with the Code Provision B.1.3.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee, among others, are (i) to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management and; (ii) to review the special
remuneration packages of all executive Directors by reference to the corporate
goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time. During the year, the
Remuneration Committee had reviewed the remuneration package for the

Directors, senior management and general staff of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee is comprised of two

independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director, namely:

Wong Ying Seung, Asiong (Chairman)
Shum Ming Choy
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings in 2008. Details of the attendance

of the Remuneration Committee meeting are set out below:

Committee members Attendance
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong 212
Nakajima Toshiharu (resigned with effect from 23 April 2008) 02
Shum Ming Choy (appointed with effect from 23 April 2008) 12
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond 212
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have a nomination committee. The Board is empowered
under the Company's Articles of Association to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional member of the Board. Candidates
to be selected and recommended are those who are experienced, competent and
able to fulfill the fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and diligence to a standard
required for listed companies’ Directors. By convention, a proposal for the
appointment of a new Director with detailed information of his/her educational and
professional qualifications and the relevant working experience is submitted to the
Board for decision making. The Board believes that it has sufficient measures to
evaluate the proposed appointment and to conclude their decision objectively. A
board meeting was held to approve the resignations of Mr. Lo Kan Sun and Mr.
Nakajima Toshiharu respectively and there was no recommendation for the

appointment of director during the year.

At every annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement

at least once every three years.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was established in
January 2003 and written terms of reference were formulated. The primary duties of

the Audit Committee, among others, are:-

(i) to communicate with the management of the Company from time to time;
(i) to review the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Company;
(i) to review the effectiveness of its internal control systems; and

(iv) to review the interim and annual results of the Group.

The Audit Committee is comprised of three independent non-executive Directors

members, namely:

Shum Ming Choy (Chairman)
Nakajima Toshiharu (resigned with effect from 23 April 2008)

Lin WaiYi
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond
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During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Audit Committee met two times
with the external auditor and representatives of the management of the Company.

The attendance records of each Audit Committee member in 2008 are set out

below:-

Committee members Attendance
Nakajima Toshiharu (resigned with effect from 23 April 2008) 02
Lin Wai Yi 212
Shum Ming Choy 22
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond 212

The Audit Committee reviewed the Company's unaudited interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2008 and audited annual results for the financial year ended
31 December 2008 with the conclusion that the preparations of such results have

been complied with the applicable accounting standards.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of the external
auditor and reviewing any non-audit services performed by the external auditor.
During the year, the remuneration of HK$ 1,258,000 and HK$561,000 were paid and
payable to the Company's auditor, Mazars CPA Limited for the provision of audit
services and for the non-audit related services (including tax services and review of

interim report and financial information) to the Group respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

[t is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the Group maintains a sound and
effective system of internal controls. The Company has formulated and adopted a
Compliance Manual and Accounting Procedures to enhance better internal control
and such Compliance Manual and Accounting Procedures would be reviewed by the
Company from time to time. The Company has also implemented practical and
effective control systems with reporting lines, reporting responsibilities and proper
procedures. The Board, through the Audit Committee, assesses the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control system which covers all material controls, including

financial, operational and compliance control.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group and believe that the statements which give a true and fair
view of the state of the Group’s affairs and of its results. The responsibilities of the
Directors and Auditor are set out on pages 36 and 37 of this Annual Report. The
Board has adopted appropriate accounting policies and made proper estimates for
the preparation of financial statements. With the assistance of the Qualified
Accountant of the Company, the directors ensure timely publication of financial

statements of the Group.

GOING CONCERN

The directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief
and having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cause significant doubt upon
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The Board therefore continues
to adopt the going concern approach in preparing the financial statements for the

financial year of 2008.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Company has established the following channels to communicate with

shareholders:

(i) corporate information is made available on its own website (http://

www.willie273.com);

(i) company announcements are made through the Stock Exchange and its own

website; and

(i) printed corporate communication such as annual report, interim report,

circular and listing documents are sent to the shareholders.

Individual resolution has been proposed by the Chairman in the general meetings
for each substantial issue. At the general meetings of the Company, the Chairman of
the Company and/or the members of the Board were available to answer questions

raised by the shareholders.
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VOTING BY POLL DREFARR

The procedures for voting by poll and the rights of the shareholders to demand a AR RIRBEAARABERAANESE  ER
poll in accordance with the Article 81 of the Articles of Association of the Company BREAEREBTEEMBHENRRURE
was announced to the shareholders at the general meeting and published in the ~ FRARAZEFUARBRREEFRUEZEFARA
relevant circular. The results of the poll were published on the websites of the ZHER o BEERBRARE KB R FAU A

Company and the Stock Exchange. ffi o

On behalf of the Board REEFS

Willie International Holdings Limited BAERERERA

King Phillip BEFpKE

Managing Director LRE

Hong Kong, 20 April 2009 FE —EENFEA-TH
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q§ MAZARS

To the members of
Willie International Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Willie International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group™) set out on pages 38 to |21, which comprise the consolidated and the
Company’s balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that

are reasonable in the circumstances.

30  WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2008 Annual Report

Mazars CPA LIMITED

J5 3 o e 4 6
34th Floor, The Lee Gardens,
33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Tyt S 48 A AR 33 98 1 [ JB 0 34

HRABEBRERARAARR
(REEZMM L2 ERRA])

=N
=]

BEEZHNEIBEEE 1218 Z B HE
2iRAE

#

BB ([ER]) REMEAR (58
RIEKE]) &R  ERBRER-F
ZENF+=H HREERRBRRE
RAIZBER ZHELEFEZEAR
#HE FAEREPRIEARERER - U
REIBEHBRBERE MBEEN -

==
T
&

ESRGAMBRRARREZEE

BRRESABERBEREHMAGRML
BERUBEREEARBEEARKIGEREE
AEMENZEGEMBERE - WEEEAE

REt - BHERGEEEGHREE A THRIIER
AMBRERAB I NDER - @ﬁé%ﬁﬁ
ETEETHRERFLERMER  EAHER
Bt - BENEREE 2 8THCK - RIRER
fEH A B 2 g5t hE -



AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to

whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and of
the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance

with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 20 April 2009

Fung Shiu Hang
Practising Certificate number: P04793

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Income Statement

meEWRER

Year ended 31 December 2008 {2 =

R

2008 2007
—B2NF —TTLF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
ks TER TERT
(restated)
(E751)
Turnover =] 5 (341,209) 104,928
Other income H b A 6 4,952 8,682
Depreciation and amortisation expense FEREHEST N (15,294) (4,373)
Employee benefits expense EERAMX (11,286) (13,353)
Other operating expenses Hofth 84 = {1 (201,817) (32,193)
Gain on disposal of interest in a subsidiary HE—FRB AR R W 30 545 —
Loss on disposal of interests in associates S S A R B8 — (20,853)
Net unrealised losses on investments RIEEEREZ
held for trading AERBEETFE (144,341) (307,732)
Net unrealised losses on investments designated R E X ERKIEEAEATE
as at fair value upon initial recognition SR ZIRE 2 AR BB R FHE (21,344) —
Profit on deemed disposal of RIEHE—M
interest in an associate A WNEIL En ik = 21,087
Share of profit of associates FEAE B & A B 2 F = 10,347
Net (losses) gains arising from changes in BEMERNTEEZS
fair value of investment properties Exz (BE) B=m#8 14 (47,845) 40,695
Finance costs BEKAR 8 (9,106) (4,817)
Loss before taxation BRBAIE R 9 (786,745) (197,582)
Taxation A I (11,083) —
Loss for the year FRER 12 (797,828) (197,582)
Loss attributable to equity holders ERBFBEAERGER (797,828) (197,582)
Loss per share — Basic BREE-EX 13 HK$(5.09) Bt  HK$(7.75) & T
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
mEEEBEBR

At 31 December 2008 R=EE\E+-F=+—8

2008 2007
—E2ENE —ERLF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt E TER TET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties BREWME 14 609,814 326,500
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RS I5 194,961 35,049
Intangible assets B EE 17 131,879 134,626
Other investments HEpiE 8 123,521 113,965
Prepayments for acquisition of BERAME
investment properties AN KIE 5,304 8,656
Loans receivable FEW E K 20 15,720 —
1,081,199 618,796
Current assets RBEE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss AT EFF ABR 2 HKEE 19 369,232 537,370
Loans receivable AR E 20 234,238 335,637
Other receivables H fth FE Y R IB 44,396 52,160
Cash and cash equivalents RekBesE 167,057 304,355
814,923 1,229,522
Current liabilities nEBaE
Financial liabilities at fair value BRTERARR®Z
through profit or loss M%aE 19 12,270 6915
Other payables H e T 308 21 23,242 13,290
Tax payables FEA K 1,237 —
Current portion of interest-bearing borrowings =t & & X 2 B EAEE o 22 24,384 160,992
61,133 181,197
Net current assets FRBEE 753,790 1,048,325
Total assets less current liabilities BEENRREBEE 1,834,989 1,667,121
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
mEEEBEBR

At 31 December 2008 R =EENE+-F=+—H

2008 2007
—EENE —ZETtF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BT FET FET
Non-current liabilities FkRBER
Long-term interest-bearing borrowings REGT BB 22 269,037 180,656
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEE R 23 25,439 —
294,476 180,656
NET ASSETS FEE 1,540,513 486,465
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRRHE
Share capital LN 25 38,996 151,793
Reserves ] 26 1,501,517 1,334,672
TOTAL EQUITY MmiES 1,540,513 486,465

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 April 2009

AEFEN _TTNFOA_+THMERRETE

King Phillip Wong Ying Seung, Asiong
Director Director

TRR Tl

EF EF
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Balance Sheet
EESEBX

At 31 December 2008 R=EE\E+-F=+—8

2008 2007
—EENE “ERELF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FRET FET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE

Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries BB AR 16 1,490,862 1,255,428

Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b fE U 2B 32 25
Cash and cash equivalents RekAie® 59,605 286,355
59,637 286,380
Current liabilities =R

Other payables H it e < 508 630 2,626
Due to a subsidiary R—FEM B ARIRIEA 16 9,518 9,518
10,148 12,144
Net current assets BARABEE 49,489 274236
NET ASSETS FEE 1,540,351 1,529 664

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARRHE
Share capital L& 25 38,996 151,793
Reserves ] 26 1,501,355 1,377,871
TOTAL EQUITY MmiES 1,540,351 1,529,664

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 April 2009

HEFER _TTNFOA-THRERKETE

8>

King Phillip
Director
SRR
EF

Wong Ying Seung, Asiong
Director

TR

2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERRBER

Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2008 2007
—B2NF —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FERT
Opening balance — Total equity at | January FONEBR-—N—A—Baks 1,486,465 329,614
Exchange movement recognised during the year 4 N3 2 [ i & (790)
Capital reserve realised upon disposal of
an associate HE e N R 2 B E ARG — (8,198)
Total expenses recognised directly in equity R HABEES AER (790) (8,198)
Loss for the year FNERE (797,828) (197,582)
Total recognised expenses BHER L (798,618) (205,780)
Placement of new shares, net of expenses FLEXAR - EHIBRFX 50,30 699,315
Rights issues, net of expenses HiR - EHMBREX 580,001
Issue of consideration shares, net of expenses BIOIRERD  SHKREX 131,840 =
ssue of warrants, net of expenses BITRBRER  SHKRAX — 72,278
Issue of shares upon termination of FLAR EFTHIR BB M BITRD
convertible notes, net of expenses BEHIBRFAX 90,974
Issue of shares under share option scheme RIR BB AR 5T 81 TR — 246,888
Issue of shares on conversion of convertible BRI ER M E TR -
notes, net of expenses BEHIBRFAX = 341,250
Equity-settled share-based payment PARRRE 45 B 2 B A7 15 3% — 5,656
Capital reorganisations, net of expenses BAER ENBRAX (450) (2,756)
Closing balance — Total equity at 3| December FRZEHR-N+-A=+—BZEEH 1,540,513 1,486,465
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
MAEBRSRERX

Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+_A=+—HILFE

2008 2007
“EEN\F “ETLE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(i TER TET

OPERATING ACTIVITIES rERK
Loss before taxation BRTLAIE R (786,745) (197,582)
Depreciation and amortisation expense TERBH I 15,294 4,373
Finance costs RN 9,106 4817
Net losses (gains) arising from changes in REMEATEESEL

fair value of investment properties BB (Kx) 8 47,845 (40,695)
Interest income on bank and other institutions  #R1T & E AL 2 F B ULA (1,599) (7,452)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BER

plant and equipment Byl E ! 254 —
Profit on deemed disposal of interest BIEHE—MBEAR

in an associate a2 A — (21,087)
Loss on disposal of interests in associates Bk A R 2 B 1R = 20,853
Equity-settled share-based payment PARR I 45 5 2 IR 17 1 3K = 5,656
Share of profit of associates JE (5Bt & A B 2 i A — (10,347)
Impairment loss on property, W% - BB R&E

plant and equipment HEEE 14,824 —
Impairment losses on other investments Hit R AR EER 11,575 =
Discount on acquisition of subsidiaries = NG el 29 (326) (74)
Gain on disposal of interest in a subsidiary HE—RNB AR W (545) —
Net unrealised losses on investments RIEEEREZ

held for trading AEREBEEFE 144,341 307,732
Net unrealised losses on investments designated R B X ERKIEEBEATE

as at fair value upon initial recognition JIRZIRE 2 RE R ERFHE 21,344 —
Allowance for doubtful debts REREE 103,268 14,000
Bad debts 2R 51,932 —
Loss on termination of convertible notes RIEFT MR IRER 818 —
Changes in working capital: HEEREE

Loans receivable W E R (69,521) (246,108)

Other receivables H e W kIR 39,630 (38,328)

Financial assets at fair value through BATESABRRLZ

profit or loss s EE 9,566 (719,369)

Other payables Hh & 5 5008 (761) 5111
Cash used in operations REMARE (389,700) (918,500)
Tax paid B IE (31 =
Interest income received from bank BEHRITREMEE 2

and other institutions FEWA 1,599 7,452
Net cash used in operating activities ARREXB2RERE (388,132) (911,048)

008 4% RAEREZERERAT 43




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERETMER

Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+_A=+—HIEFE

2008 2007
—RENF —TTLF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
(k=3 TER TET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BELERE (37,875) (13,586)
Purchase of investment properties BEREME (82,767) (143,705)
Prepayments for acquisition of BEREMEZ
investment properties T FRIE — (8,656)
Purchase of other investments BEHEMRE (21,131) (113,965)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, WEMEAR 2Nk
net of cash acquired FEEAZES 29 (95,503) (266,009)
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 1 &% &% < P15 51A — 2,700
Proceeds from disposal of interests in associates & B & A Al & < T 15 3K = 100,501
Proceed from disposal of a subsidiary & —FEB AR 2§ 5IE 30 54 —
Costs of issue and termination of BIIRKIEATRRRE
convertible notes 2R (107) —
Net cash used in investing activities BRREXB 2R EFE (237,329) (442,720)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Placement of new shares, net of expenses FLEXTAR - EHIBRFX 50,30 699,315
Issue of shares under share option scheme REBEERE B ETRG = 246,888
Issue of shares on conversion of RERARRERM
convertible notes, net of expenses BIRG  EHKRAX — 341,250
Rights issues, net of expenses #HAL - EMBRFEX 580,001 —
New bank loans raised HERITEN 40,000 173,048
New other loan raised it H A B R = 150,000
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (23,416) (20,870)
Repayment of other loans BEEMER (150,000) (5,000)
Interests paid on bank and other borrowings SARITREMERZFE (7,483) (4,908)
Capital reorganisations, net of expenses BEAEM  BHRAX (450) (2,756)
Issue of warrants, net of expenses BITRRESE  SHKRAX = 72,278
Net cash generated from financing activities REMETH2REFHE 488,953 1,649,245
Net (decrease) increase in cash RERBREEEZ (BD)
and cash equivalents ®nFEE (136,508) 295,477
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FHIZHEREESEE 304,355 8,878
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXSHTE (790) —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZEERASEE 167,057 304,355
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Willie International Holdings Limited (the “Company"”) is a public company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange"). The address of the registered
office and the principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information of this annual report. The principal activities of the

Group are described in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,

which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual HKFRS, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements also include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules").

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a basis
consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the 2007 consolidated
financial statements. The adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs that are effective
from the current year has had no significant effects on the Group's results and
financial position for the current and prior years. A summary of the principal

accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements is historical cost, except for investment properties, financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured

at fair value as explained in the principal accounting policies set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI R

Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of
the Company and all of its subsidiaries as at 3|1 December each year. The
financial statements of its subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year

and using consistent accounting policies as the Company.

All'intra-group balances, transactions, incomes and expenses and profits and
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control

ceased.

Business combination

Business combination represents transaction which combines two or more
separate businesses into one reporting entity. Business combinations are
classified into business combinations involving entities under common control

and business combinations not involving entities under common control.

Business combinations involving entities under common control

A business combination involving entities under common control is a business
combination in which all of the combining entities are ultimately controlled by
the same party or parties both before and after the business combination, and
that control is not transitory. The absorbing party is the entity that obtains
control of the other entities participating in the combination at the
combination date, and the other entities participating in the combination are
the parties being absorbed. The combination date is the date on which the

absorbing party effectively obtains control of the parties being absorbed.

Assets and liabilities obtained by absorbing party in the business combination
are recognised at their carrying amounts at the combination date as recorded

by the party being absorbed.

Any costs directly attributable to the combination are recognised as expenses

when incurred by the absorbing party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Business combinations not involving entities under common control

A business combination not involving entities under common control is a
business combination in which all of the combining entities are not ultimately
controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the business
combination. The acquirer is the entity that obtains control of the other
entities participating in the combination at the acquisition date, and the other
entities participating in the combination are the acquirees. The acquisition date

is the date on which the acquirer effectively obtains control of the acquiree.

The cost of acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the fair values of the
assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, equity instruments issued by the
acquirer at the acquisition date, and all the costs incurred directly attributable

to the acquisition, in exchange for control of the acquiree.

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are

recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Where the cost of a business combination exceeds the acquirer’s interest in
the fair value of the acquiree's identifiable net assets, the difference is
recognised as goodwill. Where the cost of a business combination is less than
the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets,
the acquirer reassesses the measurement of the fair values of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities and the measurement
of the cost of combinations. If after that reassessment, the cost of combination
is still less than the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets, the remaining difference is recognised in the profit or

loss for the current period.

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity in which the Group has the power to govern the

financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company's balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The carrying amount of the investments is
reduced to its recoverable amount on an individual basis. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and receivable.

A M BRRNEE

Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

FEEHEEK (B)
WHZHRAENERZ EHE
VHZAREHERZXBAHESLE
AHIEREXGARARLFZHR
Rl —713% 7 AR &ERS - EYE R
BGAEM2EAHERESEZ TR
W7 2EAHZEMEBARNE
o WBERUESTERRESREES
EHE 2B

WA BWERYWES ARG HREE
BZEGEMNSE2EE Y REE
ZBERET I RETAZRATE R
RBBEMRS—ERABEER -

WUES ZABAEE  BERIAE
ERWERNRFERER -

R A OF 0O R ASHR B 77 PG R BB
HABANFEREATFENEZERAR/E
B o WEBEHORAERKES R
WRBL B FEERTE  BIWRE
HABHFTERBEN AR FEE
BERIXARBBZAFENURA G
Ko Mz BRERAFRADERERES
PRI R AR EEATE Al
BTINEZEENEMRRER -

) PN
WEARDASEAEEEETHRE
ERER - WEEXBRGHNE LA -

ARAIZEERBERA  RNBRAZ
BREBEZRKARZERERBRIE - RE
RHERENREERHRET REE
FoMMBARZEERMARARE
W R B M BB 51 B o

2008 4% RAERZERERAR 47



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI R

Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the Group’s
share of the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
recognised as a separate asset. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates or jointly
controlled entities is included in interests in associates or jointly controlled
entities. Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, which
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment testing and determination of gain or loss on disposal,
goodwill is allocated to cash generating units. An impairment loss on goodwill

is not reversed.

Any excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of the acquisition of
businesses at the date of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised

immediately in the consolidated income statement.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated

useful life is finite) and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives which are determined by the period over which it is
expected to bring economic benefits to the Group. The intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are available for use and

their estimated useful lives of 49.5 years.

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives and amortisation method for

these intangible assets annually and makes adjustment when necessary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or building that are held by owner or
lessee under finance lease, to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include properties held for a currently undetermined
future use and properties that are held under operating lease, which satisfy the

definition of investment property and carry at fair value.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the balance sheet date. Any
gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. The fair value of investment property is based on a
valuation by an independent valuer who holds a recognised professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and category of

property being valued.

Other investments

Other investments are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Subsequent costs are included in
the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income statement during the

year in which they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated income statement

in the year in which the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI R

Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Property, plant and equipment (Contd)
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated impairment
losses of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives from
the date on which they are available for use and after taking into account their

estimated residual values, using the straight-line method, at the following rates

per annum:
Leasehold land Over the unexpired term of lease
Buildings 4%

Leasehold improvements 10% - 20%

Furniture and fixtures 10% - 20%

Office equipment 33'/5%

Motor vehicles 25%

Yacht 10%

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments and on a
trade date basis. A financial asset is derecognised when the Group's contractual
rights to future cash flows from the financial asset expire or when the Group
transfers the contractual rights to future cash flows to a third party. A financial
liability is derecognised only when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the

obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets or financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. They
are carried at fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised in profit or

loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are (i) acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; (ii) part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or (iii) derivatives that are not

designated and effective hedging instruments.

Financial assets or financial liabilities are designated at initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss if (i) the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring
the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on a different basis; or (ii)
they are part of a group of financial assets and/or financial liabilities that are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management strategy; or (iii) they contain embedded

derivatives that would need to be separately recorded.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and are not held for trading. They are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, except where receivables are interest-free
loans and without any fixed repayment term or the effect of discounting would
be insignificant. In such case, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment
loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition, over the year to maturity. Gains and losses arising
from derecognition, impairment or through the amortisation process are

recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI R

Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses whether there is objective
evidence that financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or
loss, are impaired. The impairment loss of financial assets carried at amortised
cost is measured as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flow discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate. Such impairment loss is reversed in
subsequent periods through consolidated income statement when an increase
in the asset's recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not

been recognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include other payables, derivatives financial
instruments and interest-bearing borrowings. All financial liabilities except for
derivatives financial instruments are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using effective interest method,
unless the effect of discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are

stated at cost.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer of the
contract to make specified payments to reimburse the holder of the contract
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contract is initially recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payable at fair value, where such information is available, otherwise, it is
recognised at consideration received and receivable. Subsequently, it is
measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation, and the amount of the provision, if any, that is required to settle

the commitment at the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Convertible notes

The component of the convertible notes that exhibits characteristics of a
liability is recognised as a liability in the balance sheet, net of issue costs. On
the issue of the convertible notes, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible notes; and
this amount is carried as a non-current liability on the amortised cost basis

until extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is
recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of issue costs. The value of

the conversion option is not changed in subsequent years.

Issue costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of
the convertible notes based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and

equity components when the instruments are first recognised.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of consolidated cash flow statement, cash equivalents
represent short-term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured

reliably and on the following bases.

Net income from the sales of investments at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised on the transaction date when the relevant sale and purchase

contract is entered into.

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to

the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised when the properties are

let out and on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's rights to

receive payment have been established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI R

Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Foreign currencies translation

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet
date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in

which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and
liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are expressed in Hong Kong dollars
using exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuated significantly during that period, in which case the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (translation
reserve). Such translation differences are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews internal and external sources
of information to determine whether the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets, other investments and investments in
subsidiaries have suffered an impairment loss or impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may be reduced. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of its
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash

flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately, except where the relevant asset is
carried at valuation in which case the impairment loss is treated as a

revaluation decrease.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount of the asset or
cash-generating unit that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, except where the relevant asset is carried at valuation, in

which case the reversal of impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI R

Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other

leases are classified as operating leases.

As lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at
the amount of the Group's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of

return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

As lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at the
lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the balance sheet as finance lease obligation. Finance charges, which represent
the difference between the total leasing commitments and the fair value of the
assets acquired, are charged to the consolidated income statement over the
term of the relevant lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge

on the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the consolidated

income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution retirement scheme
are recognised as an expense in the consolidated income statement as
incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independent

administered fund.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Long service payment

The Group's net obligation in respect of long service payment under the
Employment Ordinance is the amounts of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method and discounted
to its present value and after deducting the fair value of any related assets,

including those retirement scheme benefit.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results for the year as
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet

date.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
Deferred tax liabilities or assets are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is recovered or liability is
settled, based on the tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and

credits can be utilised.

No deferred tax is provided for temporary differences arising from goodwill,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction other than a
business combination and that affecting neither accounting nor taxable profits,
and investment in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse

in the foreseeable future.,

Related parties

A party is related to the Group if

(a) directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party
controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Group; or
has an interest in the Group that gives it significant influence over the

Group; or has joint control over the Group;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI R

Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
(b) the party is an associate of the Group;

(c) the party is a joint venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in
(a) or (d);

(f)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by or for which significant voting power in such entity resides

with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees
of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either
in providing services or investments (business segment), or in providing
services or investments within a particular economic environment
(geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different

from those of other segments.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate assets, interest-

bearing loans, borrowings, tax balances, corporate and financing expenses.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, turnover is based on the location
of investment trading, financial and rental services provided, total assets and

capital expenditure are based on where the assets are located.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective
for the current year, which the Group has not early adopted. The directors

anticipate that the adoption of these new/revised HKFRSs in the future periods
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will have no material impact on the results of the Group.

HKAS | (Revised)

BEREGENE 15 (KEFT)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

BRGTERE 235 (FEFT)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

BRGERE275 (KEFT)

HKAS 32 and HKAS | (Amendments)

BRI ERE2R B R GTES
F15 (BITX)

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

BRI ERE395 (BFTF)

HKFRS | and HKAS 27 (Amendments)

BREMBRERNFIRRELGTLER
F275 (BETK)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

BRM B HREEAE25R (BFTAX)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

BRI B0 E R R FI5R (B EFT)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

BB HRERRETR (BFTX)

HKFRS 8

BRM TG ER RN

HK(IFRIC) — Int 15

Bt (BARPERERERES) -2BF 165

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17
Bt (ERPERER
HKFRSs (Amendments)
BRMBRERER (BFA)
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Presentation of Financial Statements'

HBHR 22

Borrowing Costs'

EERA

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements?

fRE MBI B RER?

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidations'

EEEMTANFRRELNEME

Eligible Hedged ltems?
REBEIPIRA?
Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate '

R EAR -~ KFEEHEBIBE AR HEKA

Share-based Payment — Vesting Conditions and Cancellations'
DABCAD R EE B 2 A9 3K — 53 BB A6 F T Rt 3"
Business Combinations?

E i

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments'
ERMIAZHRERE

Operating Segments'

BB

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate'
FHERERZ

Distributions of non-cash Assets to Owners?
MEBADKIFREBE?

Improvements to HKFRS?

BRI BRE R 2B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI R

Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS (Contd)

: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2009 except for the
amendments to HKFRS 5 which are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after | July 2009

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
Fair value estimation
The Group uses the discounted cash flows valuation method to determine the
carrying amount of loans receivable at the balance sheet date. This valuation
requires the Group to make estimates about expected cash flows and discount

rates, and hence they are subject to uncertainty.

Impairment of investments

The Company assesses annually if interests in subsidiaries have suffered any
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 and follow the guidance of HKAS 39
in determining whether amounts due from those entities are impaired. Details
of the approach are stated in the respective accounting policies. The
assessment requires an estimation of future cash flows, including expected
dividends, from the assets and the selection of appropriate discount rates.
Future changes in financial performance and position of these entities would
affect the estimation of impairment loss and cause the adjustments of their

carrying amounts.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The provisioning policy for bad and doubtful debts of the Group is based on
the evaluation by management of the collectability of the loans receivable. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including assessing the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each borrower. If the financial conditions of
these borrowers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability

to make payments, additional allowance will be required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TURNOVER
Turnover recognised from the principal activities of the Group during the year
including investment holding, trading of investments, property investment and

provision of financial services are as follows:

A M BRRNEE

Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

EXE

AEENFAREEIRER (BRRER
B BERE WERELREBEBR
)R EXBMT

2008 2007
—BENF —TTHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FET
(restated)
(851)

Net (losses) gains from the sale of investments T EZE A FEFT ABR
at fair value through profit or loss (Note) ZEREZ (BE) WaFE (M) (384,030) 82816
Interest income from loans receivable R E R 2 F B A 29,032 18,188
Dividend income from listed investments ETHREZREKA 3,153 3,399
Rental income HEBA 10,636 525
(341,209) 104,928

Note:

The Group's proceeds from the sale of investments at fair value through profit or loss
and the corresponding carrying amount were separated into “Turnover” and “Cost of
investments held for trading sold" respectively, in the prior year's consolidated income
statement. During the current year, the Group changed its presentation, as in the
opinion of the directors, it is more appropriate to present the losses or gains from the

sale of investments at fair value through profit or loss in “Turnover” on a net basis.

The effect of this change in presentation was to decrease turnover and cost of
investments held for trading sold for the year ended 31 December 2008 by
HK$902,573,000, representing the carrying amount of investments at fair value through

profit or loss disposed of during the year

To conform with the current year's presentation, the carrying amount of investments at
fair value through profit or loss disposed of for the year ended 31 December 2007 of
HK$1,343,948,000 has been offset against turnover, resulting in a decrease in turnover
and cost of investments held for trading sold for that year by the same amount. This has
resulted in no change in the results of the Group in respect of the current and prior

years.

W3 -

AEEHERRFEF ABR CREMEHE
RAEREREED BB ABEF RS W
RZ[EZBIREERERERRENAE] -
AEERAFEERZINNFA - REARESFR
RRNEXER|NFEZ2F L ER AT ERFA
BRsREBRIURTANRE -

ZEYFAERFEHE_STNF+ A=
—HIEFEZEXEREEREEETREKA
#4902,573,000& T+ BIFWETHEZAF
B A BRzBREZEEE -

RERAFERFITA 2 BE-_TTLFT
“RA=t—-RIEFEMHERAHEFARR
ZH&E 2 ARHE1,343,948,000/8 L E B & %
BEE  SHRFCEERNEERIEREER
BRAEERD  BYERNEAEERRFE
DBEFEZEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI R

Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HtA
2008 2007
—BENF —TTLEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER THET
(restated)
(Z31)
Bank interest income RITH B IA [,I10 6,920
Other interest income H At 7 2 YA 489 532
Others Hity 3,353 1,230
4,952 8,682
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. PRENR
In accordance with the Group's internal financial reporting, the Group has BEASEASABRER  HRAKE
determined that business segment is its primary reporting format and BE_ZZN\ER_ZTTLF+_A=
geographical segment is its secondary reporting format as the Group's assets T-RIEEEZEEHRUREERD
were located in Hong Kong and the Mainland China (“PRC") for the years RE(THE])  MAEEREUELD
ended 3| December 2008 and 2007. BERTERER - UbME S HEE

RRBBREL o

Business segments ES ik

Business segments of the Group comprise the following: AEEZEBIEBETIIRE
Trading of investments : Purchase and sale of securities and provision of securities services

BEERE - BEEFRRHEFRE

Provision of financial services : Provision of loan financing services

PRt & B RS L REERRERB

Property investment : Holding properties for rental and capital appreciation

NERE C RRIHEEREAEENSAENE

Investment holding : Holding investments for dividend and investment income and capital appreciation
REER C RRIRE  REMAREXREENHFERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI

Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

TEER (B)

XBAE (4
TREJNBE-ZT\FR-ZTRLEF
t-AZ+-ALFEZHEEH -

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 7.
Business segments (Contd)

The following tables show segment information for the years ended 31
December 2008 and 2007.

Year ended 3| December 2008 BEZ2-_ZEZEN\E+-HA=1+—HLEE

Provision of
financial
Trading of services Property Investment
investments Rt investment holding Unallocated Total
EERE ERE® NERE REER ROE st
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000
TiEn TiER TER TiEn TER TiEn
Segment revenue ik ON

Turnover BXE (380,877) 29,032 10,636 = = (341,209)
Other income E ol 2239 1,432 203 1,078 — 4,952
Total revenue LNt (378,638) 30,464 10,839 1,078 = (336,257)
Segment results TERE (543,431) (123,807 (58,923) (8,868) (16,756) (751,785)

Gain on disposal of interest {1 & — i &
in a subsidiary NG Epd G — — — 545 — 545

Impairment losses on Atk &

other investments REER — — — (11,575) — (11,575)

Impairment loss on property,  ¥1% * BE R
plant and equipment LEREBSE — — (14,824) — — (14,824)
Finance costs AR A — — — — (9,106) (9,106)
Loss before taxation BRERIBR (786,745)
Taxation HIE — — (11,083) — — (11,083)
Loss for the year ERER (797,828)

2008 4% RAERZERERAT 03
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI R

Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. PEER(B)
Business segments (Cont'd) k%08 (8)
Year ended 31 December 2007 BE-_Z2BtF+-A=+t—-HLEE
Provision of
financial
Trading of services Property Investment
investments Rt investment holding  Unallocated Total
HEERE T &M% NERE REZK AN w5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FET TET TET TET TET
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(&31) (E51) (E731)
Segment revenue FEBA
Turnover eSS 86,366 17,867 525 170 — 104,928
Other income A 532 840 4 7,296 10 8,682
Total revenue LON 86,898 18,707 529 7,466 10 113,610
Segment results PERE (221,307) 764 37,267 (6,848) (14,222) (203,346)
Loss on disposal of HEHE N A
interests in associates En BB — — — (20,853) — (20,853)
Profit on deemed disposal AR {EH & — R &
of interest in an associate AR 2 — = — 21,087 — 21,087
Share of profit of associates  FEf5 B & 22 Rl A 9,165 1,110 = 72 — 10,347
Finance costs BEKAK — — — — 4817) (4817)
Loss before taxation bR A& 1R (197,582)
Taxation HB — — — — — —
Loss for the year FREBR (197,582)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI

Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. PEEN(B)
Business segments (Contd) k%58 (8)
Assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2008 R-ZBBNF+-A=+-HZEER
8
Provision of
financial
Trading of services Property Investment
investments RBM#t  investment holding Total
EERE TRR% MERE RELZR a5t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT FERT FERT FERT TR
Assets gE
Segment assets DEEE 383,870 348,974 831,296 320,735 1,884,875
Unallocated assets APEEE — — — — 11,247
Total assets mEE 1,896,122
Liabilities &
Segment liabilities SREE 19,132 7,509 298,016 27,825 352,482
Unallocated liabilities ~ ROALBE — — — — 3,127
Total liabilities BAER 355,609
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI R

Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. PEER(B)
Business segments (Cont'd) k%08 (8)
Assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2007 R-ZBELF+-A=Z+-HZEER
8
Provision of
financial
Trading of services Property Investment
investments FRfit investment holding Total
BERE & B ARG MERE REZER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET TET TET

Assets EE

Segment assets DEEEE 581,115 335,756 352,41 | 553,856 1,823,138
Unallocated assets RO EE — — — — 25,180
Total assets BB E 1,848,318
Liabilities aE

Segment liabilities DHEEE 14,308 — 165383 164,998 344,689
Unallocated liabilities ~ RO EBE — — — — 17,164
Total liabilities BEfE 361,853
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI

Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 7. DEER(B)
Business segments (Contd) k%58 (8)
Other segment information for the year ended 31 December 2008 BE-_EZ/\E+-A=1+—-HLEE
Z Bt D HEH
Provision of
financial
Trading of services Property Investment
investments Rt investment holding  Unallocated Total
BEERE EERE MXRE  REER AOE s

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TER TET TET TER TET

Capital expenditure BARX — — 511,462 21,131 7,234 539,827
Amortisation expense B = = = 2,741 = 2,747
Depreciation expense e — — 11,989 — 558 12,547
Net losses arising REME

from changes in fair ~FE

value of investment )l

properties BEEE — — 47,845 — — 47,845
Allowance for doubtful debts 2 B # {5 = 103,268 = — — 103,268
Bad debts R — 51,932 — — — 51,932
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI R

Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. PEER(B)
Business segments (Cont'd) k%08 (8)
Other segment information for the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+F+_A=1t—HILLEE
ZH M EE R
Provision of
financial
Trading of services Property Investment
investments R investment holding  Unallocated Total
EERE TR RS NERE RERR ADE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET TET TET TET

Capital expenditure BARX — — 293516 249,965 2,860 546,341
Amortisation expense BT — = — [,374 — 1,374
Depreciation expense EXH = — 2,586 — 413 2,999
Net gains arising REN%E

from changes ATE

in fair value of 28z

investment properties e — — (40,695) — — (40,695)
Allowance for doubtful debts RIE BRI & — 14,000 — — — 14,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI

Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 7. DEER(B)
Geographical segments WEDHE
The Group's investment properties are principally located in Hong Kong and AEEZREMEFEURBBRP
PRC. Trading of investments, investment holding and provision of financial cBERE REAZKRRREHSRR
services are carried out in Hong Kong. BEREBELT ©
The following table provides an analysis of the Group's turnover by TRAREEZXBRMETHEDH
geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the investments services: A DA RRERBH IR -
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
(restated)
(2%1)
Hong Kong B (342,075) 104,928
PRC i 866 —
(341,209) 104,928
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets, additions TRERBEMEHRE AN EEE
to property, plant and equipment and investment properties, analysed by the BEE FEVE BERREBEARRKR
geographical area in which the assets are located: BMEN
Additions to
Carrying amount property, plant and Additions to
of segment assets equipment investment properties
PREEREE RENE  BERRE REREME
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZBENE  -TERLF ZBRN\E —TRLF  CZERAE CBTLF
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$°000 HK$:000
TER TEL TR TR TEn TR
Hong Kong Bk 1,629,535 1,688,512 162,490 15,071 237,542 281,305
PRC i 255,340 134,626 47 = 118,617 =
1,884,875 1,823,138 162,537 15,071 356,159 281,305
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI R

Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

8. FINANCE COSTS BE KA
2008 2007
—EEN\F —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Interests on: NS
Bank and other borrowings TENZ2HEEL
wholly repayable within five years RITREAMEK 696 279
Bank and other borrowings hER2BEEZRT
wholly repayable over five years R E At f8 5K 6,787 4,538
Convertible notes BE:S &S 1,623 —
9,106 4817
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION BRBL AT
2008 2007
—EEN\F —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET
This is stated after charging: KMBRTFIER -
Auditor's remuneration ZER I 2 1,468 1,372
Contributions to MPF Scheme B e T EIHR 309 236
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #)% « /= K& BT E 12,547 2,999
Amortisation of intangible assets BVEEEH 2,747 1,374
Operating lease charges on: REHNER -
Equipment g 68 93
Office premises WAEYME 759 1,362
Equity-settled share-based payment PARR HE 45 B 2 B A7 15 3R — 5,656
Allowance for doubtful debts REREE 103,268 14,000
Bad debts R 51,932 —
Loss on termination of convertible notes RIEFTMBRERER 818 —
Impairment losses on other investments B AEAMEE X A
included in other operating expenses HiREREER 11,575 =
Impairment loss on property, B AR E X
plant and equipment included in other E N E
operating expenses REBE 14,824 —
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Directors’ emoluments

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. DIRECTORS’ AND HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

A M BRRNEE

Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

The aggregate amount of emoluments received or receivable by the

Company's directors are as follows:

0. EZRBEHEEMSE

ExMe

ARRESERIER e BREN
T

2008 —EENE
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
and benefits scheme Long
Directors’ in kind contributions service
fees ¥ RE pig7\ payment Total
Exe REWRE MR REEBEX= At
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER TER
Executive directors HiTES
Chuang Yueheng, Henry HRE — 2,400 12 — 2,412
Lo Kan Sun BER
(resigned on (RZZENF
23 April 2008) MWAZ+=H#&E) — 280 3 298 581
King Phillip EEIE — 540 12 - 552
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong T = 900 12 — 912
Wang Lin FAR — 240 12 — 252
Independent BYFHTES
non-executive directors
Lin Wai Yi BEE 120 — — — 120
Liu Jian 2% 120 — = - 120
Nakajima, Toshiharu e HE
(resigned on (RZEZNF
23 April 2008) MA=+=HET) 8 — — — 8
Shum Ming Choy ST
(resigned on (RZFEZTNF
22 April 2009) WA=+ -HEfT) 120 — — — 120
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond B & R 120 — — — 120
488 4,360 51 298 5,197
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRNEE

Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

10. DIRECTORS AND HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

0. EZREEHEEME (B)

Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd) E=Me (&)
2007 -
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
Directors' in kind scheme
fees % & 2R contributions Total
EXe REDNE RAFIEHEX a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR TET
Executive directors BITES
Chuang Yueheng, Henry qRE — 2,400 12 2412
Lo Kan Sun BEEH — 855 12 867
King Phillip TRIE — 600 12 612
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong e — 618 12 630
Wang Lin E#k — 240 12 252
Independent non- BYFHIT
executive directors B=x
Lin Wai Yi EER 120 — — 120
Liu Jian 2% 120 — — 120
Miu Frank H. (resigned on B%F (RZ_ZTZTLF
27 March 2007) ZAZTEREE) 30 — — 30
Nakajima, Toshiharu e 24 — — 24
Shum Ming Choy SR 120 — — 120
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond £ 25 R 120 — — 120
534 4713 60 5,307
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI

Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 10. EERBEFEEMS (©)

Highest paid employees’ emoluments EEHEEMS
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included four AREFNIEBRRGEERENSA (=
(2007: four) directors, details of whose emoluments are set out above. The TELF - ME)ESF REZMEFE
emoluments of the remaining one (2007: one) highest paid employee is as R EX -RT—B(ZFETLF: —
follows: B)EaFEEZHEMT :
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fe REREMA G 532 568
Retirement scheme contributions ROREHEIHEFR Il [2
543 580
2008 2007
—EENE —EBBLF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T [ |
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI R

Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

I'l. TAXATION
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the individual
companies comprising the Group have no estimated assessable profits derived

from Hong Kong for both years.

The income tax provision in respect of operations in the PRC is calculated at
the applicable tax rates on the estimated assessable profits for the year based

on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

11. B8
ARAREETERNAREME L ER
EBMEMEFERAT AN - WA KRFEE
BN EHEHRE -

FEXBHEBEASHEGIREAER
TRE - 2B REDIREF A ERK
M RERREAFE -

2008 2007
—RENF —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TERT
Current tax BNEARIIR
PRC Enterprise Income Tax BB (b TS 199 —
Deferred taxation BT TE
Origination of temporary differences 0 1 2 B AOR 24,284 —
Changes in tax rate Tt 2 2 &) (629) —
Benefit of tax losses recognised EERTIEEE KR (12,771) —
10,884 —
Total tax charge for the year FABIBRS B 11,083 —
Deferred tax recognised in the consolidated income statement ERGANBRER ZELEHRE
2008 2007
it 2 %2 —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Types of temporary differences: TRt EREER
Depreciation allowances TERE 9,888 —
Fair value adjustments NTEERAE 5,587 —
Business combination Ed =L 8,848 —
Tax losses TiIaE B (12,771) =
Others HAth (668) —
10,884 —
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TAXATION (Contd)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 3| December 2008 {2 =

A M BRRNEE

PENEHoAST-ALEE

11. HE ()

Reconciliation of tax expense BEX HH &
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLE
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Loss before taxation BRELAIE R (786,745) (197,582)
Income tax at applicable tax rate 1 16.5% 2 BABEGFE
of 16.5% (2007:17.5%) PREH (ZEZTLF 17.56%) (129,813) (34,577)
Non-deductible expenses ARk 2 34,307 276
Tax exempt revenue HIEHELA (1,168) (9,027)
Unrecognised tax losses AERREEE 98,938 47,280
Unrecognised temporary differences AERERIEEE (1,326) (1,997)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses ) R A AR 2 T B E1E (461) (39)
Recognition of previously unrecognised BREAARERZ
deferred tax assets BERIBEE (3,155) —
Recognition of previously unrecognised EREAIARER
deferred tax liabilities BEEHREEE 14,027 —
Effect of different tax rates of a subsidiary —RRNEM R EAERLE
operating in other jurisdictions MEARNIRBEZE 437 —
Effect of change in tax rates MEEF & (629) —
Effect on share of profit of associates DIEBE R RRN 2B = (1,852)
Others HAth (74) (64)
11,083 —
The applicable tax rate is the Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% (2007: EANRERERNEH 2165% (ZFF
17.5%). +tF175%) ¢
LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. FRAER

Of the Group’s loss for the year of HK$797,828,000 (2007: HK$197,582,000),
a loss of HK$841,979,000 (2007: HK$72,258,000) has been dealt with in the

financial statements of the Company.

AEEF R ZEE E797,828,000% T
(ZFZT+F :197,582,00087T) * Ef
841,979,000 T (= £ F + # :
72,258,00087T) 2 BHRER AR AI#
BEFRE -

2008 RFEBERERAR (D



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

s
N

Year ended 31 December 2008 {2 =

13.

B BERRME

R

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share for the year of 2008 is based on the
loss for the year of HK$797,828,000 (2007: HK$197,582,000) and the
weighted average number of 156,831,038 ordinary shares (2007 (restated):
25,498,857 ordinary shares) in issue during the year

No diluted loss per share is presented for the year of 2008 as the potential
ordinary shares under the warrants have anti-dilutive effect. No diluted loss
per share is presented for the year of 2007 as the potential ordinary shares
under the convertible notes, warrants and share options have anti-dilutive

effect.

Both the weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in the
calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share for the year of 2008 and
2007 have been adjusted to reflect the impact of the share consolidations and

rights issues effected during the years.

13. BREE

ETNFrEREAEBDERAFE
2 B518797,828,0008 T (ZETLF :
197,582,000 ¢) R FRE BT E®BRK
2 INHEF ¥ 20156,831,038% (= F 7t
F(E3)) : 25,498,857 LBIR) 5

ARRREEZEEEBRALRES
e BUM2II-FEN\F2ERE
B R TRRER  RREER
BREZEEEARARBSER - i
UEEFI-FTLE 2 SRBERA -

AEFENFR-_TTLFERER
REEREERRA 2 BB MEFHH
BERE  URBRRERNETZRNE
HREBRFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REY=
2008 2007
ZEENF “TTLF
HK$000 HK$'000
TER TAEL
Fair value NFE
At beginning of year NG 326,500 7,200
Additions RE 86,119 143,705
Additions — acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) RE — WK B AR (KizE 29) 270,040 137,600
Transfer to property, plant and EREYE J;fﬁbg?
equipment (note 15) & (M 15) (25,000) -
Disposals HE — (2,700)
Net changes in fair value NP ELHER (47,845) 40,695
At balance sheet date REER 609,814 326,500
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Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Contd) 14. RENE (&)
The carrying value of investment properties held by the Group at the balance REER  REBRAZREMEZER
sheet date comprised: HERRE :
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TRT
Land in Hong Kong: UREB LM
Long lease RHEAMEL 317,850 140,500
Medium-term lease AR AT 176,000 186,000
493,850 326,500
Land in PRC: ;SR e b
Medium-term lease i ERFE AT 115,964 —
609,814 326,500
The Group's investment properties as at the balance sheet date have been AEERNEEB I REMFHBELAE
revaluated by an independent qualified professional valuer, Roma Appraisals BREXHEMESERFEARA AR
Limited, on the market value basis. mEEEEHGE -
The investment properties are currently or expected to be leased to third REMZFRGHAAHRBELLHOHE
parties under operating leases, further summary details of which are included TE=F - Htp BB fE3 -
in note 31.
Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included in pages AEERBYENEMFEENF1242
124 to 127. £1278 ¢
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Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

I5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % BERRE
Leasehold  Leasehold
land and improve-  Furniture
buildings ments  and fixtures Office Motor
B B B equipment  vehicles Yacht Total
THREF NEREE kB BAZRE RE i 4 @
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TER TR TR TR TR TR TERL
Reconciliation of carrying amount - EESBHE-HZE
year ended 31 December 2007 “TT+E+ZR
=t-AL%E
At beginning of year REA 20531 1314 894 238 — — 0977
Additions WE — 3455 1,730 20 8,18l = 13586
Additions - acquisition of subsidiaries 7R E — YU EH B2 7] — — | 485 — — — 1,485
Depreciation & (659) (412) (718) (189) (1021 — (29%9)
At balance sheet date REER 19872 4357 3391 269 7,160 — 35,049
Reconciliation of carrying amount - RHSEHK-HZ
year ended 31 December 2008 “EEN\ETZA
St-HLFE
At beginning of year READ 19,872 4,357 3,391 269 7,160 — 35,049
Additions NE — 23,605 5,062 2,793 6,410 5 37,875
Additions — acquisition of RE-WEHERR
subsidiaries (note 29) (M3E 29) 29,800 29 38 3,303 = 91202 124,662
Transfer from investment ERERE
properties (note 14) mx (i 14) 25,000 = = = = — 25,000
Disposals meE - (254) - — — = (254)
Depreciation & (1,755) (1,109) (1,260) (605) (3,435) (4,383) (12,547)
Impairment loss REER - - - - —  (14824)  (14824)
At balance sheet date REER 72917 26,628 7,521 5,760 10,135 72,000 194961
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Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd) 15. NE BERRE (&)

Leasehold  Leasehold
land and improve-  Furniture
buildings ments  and fixtures Office Motor
B Ba B equipment  vehicles Yacht Total
THREF  WEREH R&#B BAZRE RE i3 @t
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TER TER THER THER THER TER TER
At | January 2008 RIZENE
—A—H
Cost A 25758 10032 4948 2,304 8,18l — 51223
Accumulated depreciation ZHAER
and impairment losses RERRE (5.886) (5675) (1,557) (2,035) (1,021) — (16174
19872 4357 3,391 269 7,160 — 35,049
At 31 December 2008 RZBENF
t-A=t-AH
Cost A 80,558 28,661 10,338 8,400 14,588 91,207 23372
Accumulated depreciation and ZHAER
impairment losses RERE (7,641) (2,033) (2817) (2,640) (4453)  (19207)  (38791)
7917 26,628 7,521 5,760 10,135 72,000 194961
The leasehold land and buildings with a net book value of HK$43,713,000 REER  AEERTHENRKEA

(2007: HK$19,872,000) and HK$29,204,000 (2007:Nil) at the balance sheet

date are held by the Group under medium-term and long-term lease

respectively in Hong Kong.

NRBAERAZRNIHREF KA
FED B A43,713,0008 T (ZEE

% : 19,872,000/ T) % 29,204,000 7T
(ZEZ+F - F)-
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Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

l6. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. M@ 2R ER
The Company
ARF

2008 2007

—RENF —TTLF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER TERT

Unlisted shares, at cost LML - AR ARG 1,226,612 776,612
Due from subsidiaries P /B8 2 RI R K 1,382,021 760,819
2,608,633 1,537,431

Impairment losses HERE (L,117,771) (282,003)
1,490,862 1,255,428
The amounts due from subsidiaries and amount due to a subsidiary are MEBRAXRFER-—RNBARIRER
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment term. The carrying BEEA 2EREETERE - XRFRZ

amount of the amounts due approximates their fair value. REESEATERE
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

=)
)

B %5 R AR B

Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

In the opinion of the directors, a complete list of the particulars of all

subsidiaries will be of excessive length and therefore the table below lists the

principal subsidiaries at the balance sheet date which materially affect the

result or assets of the Group.

Place of

incorporation

Particulars
of issued

ordinary and

16. ME DR &R (&)
EZR5 nEEIMEMBRARZH
BEREBRIE R TREZIING
EANTGEXEXEEREAREL

TEMBAA -

Proportion of nominal

value of issued capital

Name of and operations paid up capital held by the Company
subsidiary A 32 ERTEER ARARBEEERT Principal activities
WEBAREM REEHE BRRE 2B RAMEEZ LA FEER
(Note) Directly Indirectly
(Ff5E) & A&
Allied Loyal International British Virgin Islands 50,000 shares of no par value — 100 Investment holding
Investments Limited KERUES 50,000 B AR E B 2 B fn REEK
US$50,000
50,000 £ 7T
Apex Novel Limited British Virgin lIslands | share of US$| each — 100 Property investment
RERZES | B A B | T2 R £ NERE
Bestford Properties Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$!| each — 100 Property holding
BA |00RR B AR I (B 1 7 T 2 £ ESSEE
Bright Majestic Limited British Virgin Islands | share of US$I each — 100 Property investment
RBRELES | REE =T R NERE
Clear Point Limited British Virgin Islands | share of US$! each — 100 Property investment
RERZES | A B | T2 B bR NERE
Cordoba Homes Limited British Virgin Islands 450,078,008 shares 100 — Investment holding
TEREARDA RERXES of HK$| each RELZR
450,078,008% &
HE BT 2K
China United International Hong Kong 53,000 shares of 100 — Provision of
Administrative Services BB HK$100 each administrative
Limited 53,000 REREE services
EBEEREER AR 1007 7.2 B 7 RETHRS
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Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

16. ME LR &R (&)

Particulars
Place of of issued Proportion of nominal
incorporation ordinary and value of issued capital
Name of and operations paid up capital held by the Company
subsidiary o B 32 BRITEZER EARRBECRT Principal activities
MEAREE REEmE BRRAZHE MR AT {8 2 t A FTEEH
(Note) Directly Indirectly
CiE) k-3 &
Earn Best Investments British Virgin Islands | share of US$| each — 100 Property investment

Limited REBRZHES

Glamourous Investments British Virgin Islands

Limited RBELHS

Hostbest Limited British Virgin Islands

REBRELES

International Stamps & Coins ~ Hong Kong

Exchange Gallery Limited BB

RHRLER A
Jet Star Industries Limited Hong Kong
EBEXBRAF B
Longtop Enterprises Limited Hong Kong
EREXERAF BE
Million Regal Investment Hong Kong

Limited 5
ERRBERAA

Pear| Decade Limited British Virgin Islands

RERTEE
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| share of US$I| each

— 100

| REREE | £k

| share of US$! each
IR GREEIETBRA

20,200 shares of
HK$ | each
20,2008% & fix
H{E BT B

[,000 shares of HK$ | each
| 000R% & A&
[ERERN &)

| share of HK$ | each
s RN A <)

[,000 shares of HK$| each
1,000 B& & %
[EXERN i 40)

9,615,386 shares
of US$I| each
9.615386/ 5 ik
HE X2k

— 100

— 100

— 100

— 100

— 100

— 100

NEERE

Investment holding

REEK

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

MEHRE

Trading of

investments

EERE
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Place of

incorporation

=)
)

B %5 R AR B

Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

Particulars
of issued

ordinary and

16. ME DR &R (&)

Proportion of nominal

value of issued capital

Name of and operations paid up capital held by the Company
subsidiary o i B X2 BRITEZER EARRBECRT Principal activities
MEAREE REEwE BRREZFHE RAEEZ LA TEEH
(Note) Directly Indirectly
(B &) HE# &
Portstar Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands | share of US$| each — 100 Property investment
BERBERAA REREXES | B E | 57T 2 D NERE
Radford Portfolio Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$ | each — 100 Property holding
Management Limited BB 10,000 fX & Pk MERHE
EREEEERRAA H{E BTl
Startech Business Limited British Virgin Islands | share of US$| each — 100 Property investment
REEXES | & E 1 52 7T 2 D NERE
Silver Target Limited British Virgin Islands | share of US$| each — 100 Property investment
RERIHE IR EIREEET2 B 7 MERE
Uprite Limited British Virgin Islands | share of US$| each — 100 Yacht owning
RERUHE IIRGAREE £ T KD BEEERE
Wealth Champion Limited British Virgin Islands | share of US$| each — 100 Property holding

Wealth Elegant

Investments Limited

HHRRERRRAA

Wellhand Limited

Willie Financing Limited
BN BAR R

RBREZES

British Virgin Islands
RERTEE

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
BB

| iR IREE | £ 2B

| share of US$! each

— 100

| LB IREE | =2 iRHD

2 shares of HK$ | each
REBREE BT KRG

| share of HK$ | each
| B B AR EE | B T 2 B p

— 100

100 =

and investment

MEFHEREE

Property investment

NEKRE

Property investment

NERE

Money lending
&
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Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

Place of

incorporation

Particulars
of issued

ordinary and

16. ME LR &R (&)

Proportion of nominal

value of issued capital

Name of and operations paid up capital held by the Company
subsidiary o B 32 BRITEZER EARRBECRT Principal activities
MEAREE REEmE BRRAZHE RAEE 2 LA FTEEH

(Note) Directly Indirectly

(B &E) B &
Willie Resources Cayman Islands 4,951,408,325 shares 100 — Investment holding

Incorporated RERHS of HK$0.10 each REERK
BMEREF AT 4951408 325 B Bk
E{E0.108 T2 i

Winsy Investments Limited British Virgin Islands | share of US$| each — 100 Property investment
BEREERAT REREXES | & R B | 57T 2 B fn NERE
Wiseteam Assets Limited British Virgin Islands 100 shares of US$ | each — 100 Property investment

KBELES

100X & AR E 1 | £ 7T 2 IR 7

NERE

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in Hong Kong except for Jet

Star Industries Limited which operates principally in the PRC.

Note:  No loan capital has been issued by any of the subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI

Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BLEE
Total
@it
HK$’000
TET
Reconciliation of carrying amount ARE 2B
— year ended 3| December 2007 —HE_ZZ+F+_A=t-HLEE
At beginning of year REA) =
Additions NE 136,000
Amortisation i (1.374)
At balance sheet date REE B 134,626
Reconciliation of carrying amount REHSHEHEER
— year ended 31 December 2008 -BE-EENF+-A=+-HLFE
At beginning of year REF] 134,626
Amortisation i (2,747)
At balance sheet date R&ER 131,879
At | January 2008 RZZEZENF—-A—H
Costs 2EN 136,000
Accumulated amortisation RET (1,374)
134,626
At 31 December 2008 R=-ZBFNF+t-A=t—-H
Costs AR 136,000
Accumulated amortisation Rt (4,121)
131,879
The intangible assets represents the rights to (i) obtain the 50% of forestry ZERTVEERATBRIPESTHRERE
land use rights and forestry trees entitlement of three forestry sites in Simao LEMRER= R ARM.250%MiE A
District, Puer City, Yunnan Province, the PRC and (ii) share 50% of distributable BREMARFERE  B)ZEZZERMNLZ
profits of these forests. 50% Al D B A o
The forestry land use rights and forestry trees entitlement of these three %= P AR 2 iR R FRAE R R BT
forestry trees sites are 50 years from 24 January 2007 to 23 January 2057. RH50F BZEE+E—-HAZ+WA

E_TRtF—HA-f+=H-
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Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

18. OTHER INVESTMENTS 18. Hitk#&
2008 2007
—B2NF —TTLR
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TERT
At cost BURE A& 5t
At beginning of year REF]) 113,965 —
Additions NE 21,131 113,965
Impairment losses HERE (11,575) —
At balance sheet date NEER 123,521 113,965
Other investments represent rare precious stone and artwork acquired by the HREEAEERIERRARERAM
Group for long-term investment purposes. WREzHRAEEORENm -
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Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 19. BRAFEH AEH2HBEE &

PROFIT OR LOSS

i

Analysis of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: BATEFSABR MBEEZ DT
2008 2007
—2BNF —TTLF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
P TER TRET
Investments held for trading KEEERE
Equity securities RN %5
Listed in Hong Kong REE L 293,065 520,530
Listed overseas Rk 12,613 16,840
(@) 305,678 537,370
Investments designated as at fair value RERBEIAKEER
upon initial recognition RAVEIGZRE
Unlisted derivative financial instruments FLEmOTEERMIA (b) 9,612 —
Unlisted convertible bonds FEmAIRRES (0) 53,942 =
63,554 —
369,232 537,370
Analysis of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: BATESABRZMBEEZ D
Investments held for trading KEEERE
Unlisted derivative financial instruments FEMITESRIA (b) 12,270 6915
Notes: Ptz
(@)  The fair value of listed equity securities is based on quoted market prices in active (a) LEMRAZBHFZATEDNIREREZAR
markets at the balance sheet date. ERT S REHE -
(b)  The fair value of unlisted derivative financial instruments is measured by reference (o) FEEMTEESRTIAZATFEDRE—
to open market value at the balance sheet date provided by a securities broker. REFEBITMRERNEE B 2 2™
CHER
() The fair value of unlisted convertible bonds at the balance sheet date has been (c) MEHEHEB FLmARREFZATE

TE—RBYABREXRMGERM &S
RAEERAR  REEMHRHZ
A SEfhEEREE

measured by an independent qualified professional valuer, Roma Appraisals
Limited, based on reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market

transactions.
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Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

20. LOANS RECEIVABLE 20. BWER
Loans granted to borrowers are repayable according to repayment schedules. HFERAZERDEEEERRAE
The balance comprises loans receivable from: BR - BRBEUATZRKER :
2008 2007
—BEBN\E —TTLF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Pt & FER FET
Third parties F£= (a) 367,226 349,637
Allowance for doubtful debts REBERREAE (b) (117,268) (14,000)
249,958 335,637
Less: Balances due within one year W —F RIS A
included in current assets MENVEE < iR (234,238) (335,637)
Non-current portion FREF D 15,720 —
2008 2007
—BEN\F —ETLHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER TR
Short term loans, net of provision RHBER - MREE 230,78 335,637
Instalment loans HHEX 19,177 —
249,958 335,637
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Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

20. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Contd) 20. EWE (&)
Notes: Bzt
(@) At the balance sheet date, loans receivable () carry effective interest rates (a) REHEB  BRER(ZEEFENTF
ranging from prime rate to 8% per annum (2007: from prime rate to prime rate REENRZEERRGE (= F ”fJCfFr 3
plus 5%); (2) include loan balance of HK$8,000,000 which is past due for three RERFEZREZFENE) :
months (2007: Nil); (3) include loan balances of HK$359,226,000 (2007: B BH =18 A ) E 5 £48,000,000
HK$349,637,000) which are within the respective maturity dates and (4) an BT (ZEE+F - F) QBERSE
aggregate amount of HK$153,635,000 are secured by collaterals or under B2 28 B W) & F 4 $2359,226,000
personal guarantee (2007: are not secured by any collaterals). BT (ZEF £ F : 349,637,000%
o)+ R(4)& $£1563,635,00008 T bA

ReFERIAMBEARR(ZFFL
F: EEMERGRER) o

(b)  The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts is as follows: b)) RERBEZHOT :
2008 2007
ZBENF —EELE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT THET
At beginning of year R 4] 14,000 —
Increase in allowance BN 103,268 14,000
At balance sheet date REER 117,268 14,000
The directors assessed the collectability of loans receivable at the balance sheet BEREBEA2BERAZBTERL
date individually with reference to borrowers' past collection history and current BRERIER ?ﬁf AR AT U &
creditworthiness. An amount of HK$117,268,000 (2007: HK$/4,000,000) in K2 AW ERERE - aﬂﬁa’éﬁiﬂiﬁin%%ﬁk
respect of nine loans was determined to be impaired as a result of the HER 2 308 117,268,0008 L (= F
assessment. In the directors’ opinion, there was no indication of deterioration in F : 14,000,000/& ) AR E ° i?u@
the collectability of the remaining amount of HK$249,958,000 and thus no & - HERFREE 249,958,000 7T 2 AT K
additional allowance was considered necessary. B ERCTR - A BEZER
BOMES -
21. OTHER PAYABLES 21. HtENRE
Included in other payables is an amount of HK$6,774,000 (2007: Hit BN IEBE—E /26,774,000
HK$7,393,000) payable to a securities broker of which the settlement term is 7T (:%E“‘f:f?—t : 7,393,000/&7T) 2 FE1S
two days after trade date. BHEELTIE  ZFEZEFHARS
Eﬁﬁﬁimo

2008 4% RAEREZERERAT 89



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRNEE

Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

22. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

22. TEER

The Group The Company
AEH ADT

2008 2007 2008 2007

ZRBRN\FE —TTLF CZBENE _—TTLF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

TERT TEX TERT TERT
Secured bank loans BHEABRITER

(Note a) (Mizxa) 293,421 191,648 — —
Unsecured other loan EEREMER

(Note a & b) (HizXa K b) — 150,000 — —

293,421 341,648 — —

Maturity of the above borrowings is as follows:

TRERZEERAT

The Group The Company
AEE AN

2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENE C—TTLF CZBENF _—TTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FET TER THET
Within one year —FRQ 24,384 160,992 — —
In the second year E_F 24,776 11,356 — —
In the third year F=F 25,180 11,735 — —
In the forth year FMF 23,097 12,131 — —
In the fifth year FREF 21,026 12,545 — —
Over five years REFEMNE 174,958 132,889 — —
269,037 180,656 — —
293,421 341,648 — —
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Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

22. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Contd) 22. SHEER (B)

Notes: Bisr -

(a) Bank loans are variable rate borrowings which carry interest rates ranging from (a) WOERRIEER RZTZN\F2
prime rate minus 3.15% to prime rate or at HIBOR plus 2% for the year of 2008 B9 T B B B A K ﬂ&’ 1SEERER
(2007: prime rate minus 3.15% to prime rate minus 0.5%). MEFFEBRITRAEFSME (ZEF

tF  REBNEFHI15EZREEF]
FHFE)
Other loan has one month loan period and interest rates at 5% for the year of EhERR _ZELF2ERBAR—E
2007. A FIRB5E -
(b)  Movements in other loans are as follows: b) EHMEREZHNOT :
The Group The Company
r5E ARH
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZBENF T E ZBENF ZETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET THT TET THET
At beginning of year R EEA) 150,000 5,000 — 5,000
Additions iR — 150,000 — —
Repayment iz (150,000) (5,000) - (5,000)
At balance sheet date NEER — 150,000 — —
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Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

23. DEFERRED TAXATION 23. ELBIE
The movement for the year in the Group's net deferred tax liabilities is as FRNASEETHBEEFELHM
follows: T

2008 2007

—geNF  —TTF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT TERT

At beginning of year REA] = —

Acquisition of subsidiaries YR B8 2 A 14,555 —

Charge to the consolidated income statement 5T AR & Mz & 10,884 —

At balance sheet date REEHR 25,439 —
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date REFRHANECHEEERB AN

represent the following: T -
Assets Liabilities
BE af

2008 2007 2008 2007

—ERNF —TTLF CZBENF —TTLF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

TERT TET TERT TET

Depreciation allowances FERE 846 — (10,734) —

Fair value adjustments RNTERE = = (5,587) —

Business combinations ¥BEH — — (22,572) —

Tax losses HBEEE 12,771 — — —

Others Hth — — (163) —

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) BEREEE (BE) 13,617 — (39,056) —

Offsetting B (13,617) — 13,617 —

Net deferred tax liabilities FEEEEFHE — — (25,439) —
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DEFERRED TAXATION (Contd)

A M BRRNEE

Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

23. BEHE ()

Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from ABRAELEREEERA !
2008 2007
—2ENE “ETLE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Deductible temporary differences ARG ERE 10,821 1,568
Tax losses HIEEE 1,044,220 467,804
At balance sheet date NEER 1,055,041 469,372

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 19 May 2008, the Company entered into agreements with third parties
pursuant to which convertible notes with a principal amount of approximately
HK$86,882,000 (the “Convertible Notes") were issued on 7 July 2008 for the
acquisition of 100% interest in and the shareholders’ loan to Glamourous
Investments Limited, Best Inspire Limited and Bright Majestic Limited at an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$86,882,000. The Convertible
Notes are non-interest bearing with maturity date on 6 July 201 . The initial
conversion price was HK$0. | | per share which was adjusted to HK$0.298 with
effective from 5 August 2008.

The Company would repay the holder of the Convertible Notes on the
maturity date of the outstanding principal amount of Convertible Notes. In
addition, the holder of the Convertible Notes shall has the right to convert the
outstanding principal amount of each Convertible Notes in whole or in part
into shares of the Company at any time from issue date until a date falling

seven days prior to (and excluding) maturity date.

24, RARERE

RZZZNFRAATNR  ARRHEE=
HEIL W - RZEEN\FLALRETAR
© #14)86,832,0007& T A AT AR = 1 (7] 44
RRE]) - FIAKEE2H(E%186,882,0007%
JCEGlamourous Investments Limited *

Best Inspire Limited} Bright Majestic
Limited® H#Em R E FZE L ANERRE
Ko BOABRREBRIPEA_ZT—F
T ARE - SRR ERERAKN0.11
BT BZZENF/\HLBREREZR
Fk0.298% T °

AARRNEMEEETARERN KR
EEASHBETARREERBA - It
o TRERREREAGERERBET
AHEZIHMAMLE (PERIHA)
ARATREERNREERSBELH
A ERARDABL
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Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Contd) 24, MRRER (&)

The Company shall have the right to redeem the whole or part of the
outstanding Convertible Notes at any time after first anniversary of the issue
date subject to the redemption premium at 0% on the aggregate principal

redemption amount to be paid by the Company.

The Convertible Notes contain liability component, equity component (i.e.
conversion option) and early redemption option derivative. The early
redemption option derivative is not closely related to the host contract as the
early redemption amount is not close to the amortised cost of the liability on
the redemption date. Early redemption option derivative is measured at fair

value with change in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

On || September 2008, the Company and the holder of the Convertible

Notes entered into a termination deed to terminate the Convertible Notes

AABBERBRTHENE - BFRL
RERBED2BRABEIREETRRE
B WARARAEMNERASAEMN
10% AR g B E -

TRBRREBEAERS - Baa s (B
BB bR B T TR - BR
REEREHEAEDA A ERHEKER
TEEDBE - SURAIREMETET
ARFERANEZTRE - RAREY
BITAETANAVEAE  AAFEE
B BRER o

RZZZENFANAT—H  FRAEA
BMBREBIHAALRIEROKIER

and the holder of the Convertible Notes accepted the issuance of BREE  TRREBERAALERAR
650,000,000 ordinary shares at HK$0.14 per share by the Company as full and NAENKE KK MOIME T B ﬁ

650,000,0000% L @f% © 2EBUEEARD
RER AR ER 2 BT

final settlement of the Company’s obligations under the Convertible Notes.

(a) Valuation of liability component (a) BENT2ZMHE
At the date of issue, the liability component was recognised at fair value. THE  BEPIERATER
The fair value of liability component was calculated based on the present ES %%‘E‘ b5 2 A LT‘@TJ%EAW IR

REANMEEARRESRER
RERRXFHROREE - MAT
HENKEEN2ZAEHIEE
AR BB RRBREEEMIER
%ﬁﬁﬁﬂfiﬁ’ﬁi’]%\ﬁ“ o ik
HE - AR RBERNEER
BHAAAER - BESBINERSF
F%E519.09%

value of the initial recognition contractually determined stream of future
cash flows discounted at the required yield, which was determined with
reference to the average yield of other non-convertible notes with
similar credit rating, structure and investment characteristics. In
subsequent periods, the liability component is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate of the

liability component is 19.09% per annum.
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Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Contd)

(b) Valuation of early redemption option derivative

Binomial model is used for valuation of early redemption option
derivative. The following table lists the key inputs into the model used on

the date of issuance and termination:

24, MTRKRERE (&)

(b) RABDHAETETLR

RABOMETETRE 2HERH
“HABNGE - TREFINEST
R BBARZEN 2 8

Date of Date of
issuance termination
BITHM #1EAH
Stock price 1B HK$0.05 7L  HK$0.131 &L
Expected volatility TR R 12 78% 82%
Expected dividend yield AR S & 0% 0%
Risk free rate B A 2.908% 2.155%
The movement of the Convertible Notes for the year is set out below: AERABMBREREBHMT
Group and Company FEERADH
Liability Equity Derivative
component  component  component Total
aERD BEMos TETIARS Azt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TERT TERT TERT TERT
At | January 2008 RZZEZENF—-—HA—H — — — —
Upon issuance BT 51,519 38,246 (2,883) 86,882
Less: Direct costs B EERAR (81) — — (81)
51,438 38,246 (2,883) 86,801
Effective interest expenses STARERAZ
included in finance costs ERFNEFX 1,623 — — 1,623
Change in fair value NFEZE — — 1,758 1,758
53,061 38,246 (1,125) 90,182
Termination s (53,061) (38,246) [,125 (90,182)
At 31 December 2008 R-ZZNF
+ZA=+—H = = = =
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Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. |
Notes Number of Nominal
Bt & ordinary shares value
EBR2HA HfE
HK$°000
TET
Authorised ordinary shares BREE0.10BTZ
of HK$0.10 each: EEEBER
At | January 2007 R-_ZEZ+F—-H—H 20,000,000,000 2,000,000
Increase during the year F AN 30,000,000,000 3,000,000
Capital reorganisation BEAREH (45,000,000,000) (4,500,000)
At 31 December 2007 R-EFLF+-_A=1—H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Increase during the year FERNIEM (d) 45,000,000,000 4,500,000
First Capital Reorganisation BAEREH (e)(iv) (40,000,000,000) (4,000,000)
Second Capital Reorganisation EZREREH (h)(iv) (9,000,000,000) (900,000)
At 3| December 2008 R=ZBNF+=A=+—H 1,000,000,000 100,000
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Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)

25. BRA& (&)

Notes Number of
st ordinary
shares
in issue Issued Share
%ot capital premium Total
LERYA ERTRE R EE Azt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER
Issued and fully paid ordinary SREE0.10BTZERT
shares of HK$0.10 each: RBREEERER
At | January 2007 R-ZT+F-A—H 3,506,494,988 350,649 291,267 641916
Placement of new shares, EREHR - Mk
net of expenses Bk 6,154,218,000 615422 83,893 699,315
Issue of shares under share REBRESS
option scheme BRI 2,018,600,000 201,860 53999 255,859
Issue of shares on conversion SERTRRZE
of convertible notes 317 47 3,500,000,000 350,000 — 350,000
Repurchase of share Ok (8) — — —
Capital reorganisation, BAEME 2k
net of expenses FX (13,661,381,682) (1,366,138) 1,363,382 (2,756)
Expenses relating to the issue and BIRBRABRER
conversion of convertible notes EEZRAX = = (8,750) (8,750)
At 31 December 2007 S
=t+—H 1517931298 151,793 783,791 1,935,584
Rights issue, net of expenses iR - EMBRFAX (a) 1,517,931,298 151,793 173,360 325,153
Placement of new shares, EREHR - Mk
net of expenses X (b) 303,580,000 30358 19,943 50,301
Issue of consideration shares, EIIRERD
net of expenses EHNBRRAX (0 160,000,000 16,000 4,086 20,086
Repurchase of shares, BE&H - BNk
net of expenses X (e)(i) (1 — — —
First Capital Reorganisation, BERERER
net of expenses EHNBRRAX @)  (2799,554,076) (279,955) 279,718 (237)
Rights issue, net of expenses iR - EMBRFEX M) 1749721295 174972 79876 254,848
Issue of consideration shares, EIIRERR -
net of expenses EHNBRRAX () 800,000,000 80,000 31,754 111,754
Issue of shares upon termination of ~ BLAX AR EE T
convertible notes, net of expenses BIRG  EARFAX (9 650,000,000 65,000 25974 90,974
Repurchase of shares, BE&G - BNk
net of expenses X (h)(i) 4) — — —
Second Capital Reorganisation, E_RERER
net of expenses EHNBRRAX (h)(v)  (3,509,648,829) (350,965) 350,752 (213)
At 31 December 2008 R=ZBENF 389,960,981 38,996 2,749,254 2,788,250
tZA=+-H
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Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)
Notes:

(@)

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company held on 28 December 2007, rights shares of 1,517,931,298 on
the basis of | rights share for every adjusted share held at a price of HK$0.22

each were issued and allotted to successful applicants on 29 January 2008.

On 21| February 2008, the Company allotted and issued 303,580,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each for cash to independent investors at a price of HK$0.17

per share.

On 14 April 2008, the Group entered into an agreement with a third party to
acquire 100% interest in Allied Well Development Limited (“Allied Well") at a
consideration of HK$20,160,000 which was satisfied by the issue and allotment of
160,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company at HK$0.126 per
share. The fair value of the shares issued was based on the closing price as quoted

on the Stock Exchange on the date of agreement.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company on 30 May 2008, the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased to HK$5,000,000,000 by the creation of an additional 45,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.
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BE_ZTLFTA=-+/\HALH
BRENASBBZERRER 15
A S BB &3 R
ZEE - PBRKN0.228 T 2 BERR
“EEN\E-AZTNBRKNEE

B 17 ] AR #1,517,931,2988% ¢ AR Ak

1/\ ®

“EENF_A=-t+—H ARAEE
RON7TETHERRBIREER G
%} %17303,580,000/% F R E{E0.10
Bz Emg o

“ZTN\FNATHEA  AEEE—F
£ =751 % LA (820,160,000 7T
hEmnEERERAR ([HE]) M2
B ZREBASR0.126B T2 E
1% %17 12 it 3 160,000,0005% & % F {2
0. 1082 EBRZAM o FIETROA
TEER B HEFAORTER

.
E°
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)
Notes: (Cont'd)

(©)

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 4 August 2008, the

resolutions approving the share consolidation and the capital reduction of the

Company (the "First Capital Reorganisation”) and the rights issue were duly

passed and the First Capital Reorganisation had become effective from the close

of business on 4 August 2008. The effects of the First Capital Reorganisation and

the rights issue are as follows:

(ii)

Prior to the effective date of the First Capital Reorganisation, the Company
purchased | ordinary share of HK$0.10 from the market pursuant to the
powers granted to the directors under the repurchase mandate for the
purpose of rounding down the then 3,499,442,596 issued shares to
3,499,442,595 issued shares so as to facilitate the First Capital

Reorganisation.

Under the capital reduction, the authorised capital of the Company was
reduced from HK$5,000,000,000 divided into 50,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each to HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 50,000,000,000 reduced
shares of HK$0.02 each and the reduction be effected by way of the
cancellation of HK$0.08 of the paid up capital on each issued share of
HK$0.10 and by reducing the nominal value of each authorised and issued
share from HK$0.10 to HK$0.02 per reduced share.

Under the share consolidation, every 5 reduced issued and unissued shares
of HK$0.02 each was consolidated into | adjusted issued and unissued
consolidated share of HK$0.10 each.

A M BRRNEE

Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

25. BRA& (&)
GEENC ),

(e)

RZZEZNENANBRTZADAR
REFAE L #EKDARGAHK
BEXREIR ((BREREMR]) RER 7R
ZROEFABB MEREREHED
I N\FN\RNBLERELERE
£ BRERBARER 2 EM
T
) NEXBEAEALERBH - A
ERENERER  ARARE
BOREXTESZEN B
BEBIREEI0E T LR
B& o LAHE E B 23,499,442 596/
B BT T3 %3,499,442,595
Hgo

(i) WEERER - ARAZEER
7 £ 5,000,000,000% 7T (5 &
50,000,000,0008% & & E {&0.10
BTz KR M) HRZE
1,000,000,000 T ( % A
50,000,000,0000% % % & 0.02
AT EHDRRG) - EATHIRAR
AZAXRBHEHEE 0BT
BRI 2 BB R AT E50.08
B - RIGEEERBEITRG
ZE{ERSRRH0.107 LBl R
ZERCEIRR7H0.028TT

(i) RERDEH - SR EREE
0.028 70 2 IR E BT RAZ
TH & 6t A1 R E R E{E0.1058
T BABCETRABRTAH
B
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Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)
Notes: (Cont'd)

(e) (Contd)

(iv)  As the result of the First Capital Reorganisation, the number of authorised
ordinary shares of the Company was reduced from HK$5,000,000,000
divided into 50,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each to HK$,000,000,000
divided into 10,000,000,000 adjusted shares of HK$0.10 each while the
issued and paid up capital of the Company was reduced from
HK$349,944,259.50 divided into 3,499,442,595 shares of HK$0.10 each to
HK$69,988,851.90 divided into 699,888,519 adjusted shares of HK$0.10

each.

(v)  An amount of HK$279,955,000 arising from the capital reduction, after the
deduction of expenses related to the First Capital Reorganisation
amounting to HK$237,000, was credited to the share premium account of

the Company.

(vi) 1,749,721,295 rights shares on the basis of 5 rights shares for every 2
adjusted shares held at a price of HK$0.15 per rights share were issued and

allotted to successful applicants on 27 August 2008.

(f)  On 8 September 2008, the Group entered into an agreement with a third party
to acquire 100% interests in Jet Star Industries Limited (“Jet Star”) at a
consideration of HK$ 112,000,000 which was satisfied by the issue and allotment
of 800,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company at HK$0.14 per
share. The fair value of the shares issued was based on the closing price as quoted

on the Stock Exchange on the date of agreement.
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AZBEETRARRK
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)
Notes: (Cont'd)

(®

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 16 October 2008,

a resolution was passed for the termination of the convertible notes in the

aggregate principal amount of approximately HK$86,882,000, in consideration of
an issue of 650,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company at
HK$0.14 per share which were issued and allotted on 2| November 2008.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 4 December 2008,

a special resolution in respect of the share consolidation and the capital reduction

of the Company (the “Second Capital Reorganisation”) were approved by the

shareholders. The effects of the Second Capital Reorganisation were as follows:

(ii)

Prior to the effective date of the Second Capital Reorganisation, the
Company purchased 4 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each from the market
pursuant to the powers granted to the directors under the repurchase
mandate for the purpose of rounding down the then 3,899,609,814 issued
shares to 3,899,609,810 issued shares so as to facilitate the Second Capital

Reorganisation.

Under the capital reduction, the authorised capital of the Company was
reduced from HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each to HK$100,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 reduced
shares of HK$0.0l each and the reduction be effected by way of
cancellation of HK$0.09 of the paid up capital on each issued share of
HK$0.10 and by reducing the nominal value of each authorised and issued
share from HK$0.10 to HK$0.0! per reduced share.

Under the share consolidation, every 10 reduced issued and unissued
shares of HK$0.0l each was consolidated into | adjusted issued and

unissued consolidated share of HK$0.10 each.

A M BRRNEE

Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

25. BRA& (&)
GEENC ),

(9)

(h)

RZBENETA+ABRTHADR
BREEASERB-BRER  KRIA
A% %8 4186,882,000/ 7L 2 Al A [k =
B REBAR-ZZN\GE+-—A=+-—
REERLI4E TETRER
650,000,0000% & R A E0.10% T2 &
RREBR °

ERRER-ZEN\F+ - AMALHT
ZREERARE L BREREEBRER
Ak A REXRER (($ - RERE
A ZERRER - E-RBAEAL
FEHIMT

() REZREREAEHBHA
BEBRENEBEAREME  AAH
BEERRERTES2EN
Bi%EEAR SR EE. 105 T
ZEBR O UBEEZ
3,899,609,814% B %177 T4
%3,899,609,8108% °

(i) WEERER - ARAZEER
7K 5 1,000,000,0005% T (5 &
10,000,000,0008% % % F {50.10
7T 2 B f7) IR Z 100,000,000
#7L (£ 410,000,000,0008 & %
EfE0.01B T 2 & HIR AR ) - i
THRRAz AR RREEE
0108 T2 BEETRH 2 HER
AFIH0.098 T « REEEER
BETzRM 2 EESTRRH
0.107% 7T B & 2 8 BR 45 B R Bk 12
0.0 7T

(i) RERRDAEH  S1O0REREE
0.0VBTL 2 BHEIME BITRAZ
TH & 6t B 1R SR E{E0.1058
T BABCETRABRTAH
B
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Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL (Contd) 25. B& (&)
Notes: (Contd) Mzt = (&)
(h) (Contd) h (&)
(iv) As a result of the Second Capital Reorganisation, the authorised capital of (iv)

the Company was reduced from HK$1,000,000,000 divided into
10,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each to HK$100,000,000 divided into
1,000,000,000 adjusted shares of HK$0.10 each while the issued and paid
up capital of the Company was reduced from HK$389,960,981 divided into
3,899,609,810 shares of HK$0.10 each to HK$38,996,098.10 divided into
389,960,981 adjusted shares of HK$0.10 each.

(v)  An amount of HK$350,965,000 arising from the capital reduction, after the (V)
deduction of expenses related to the Second Capital Reorganisation
amounting to HK$213,000, was credited to the share premium account of

the Company.

E_BRBERE  ADREZEER
7K | 1,000,000,000% T (9 A
10,000,000,0008% &R EI1EO. 10/ 7T
2 B&47) B3, 2 100,000,000/ 7T (5
/1,000,000,0008% = fX E{B0.107%
TLZISARRD) - MARBZEE
17 R B R iR 7K 3 389,960,981/ 7T
(9 /43,899,609,8108% Z&EH0.10
T2 R {n) BRI E38,996,098.107
7L (4 £ 389,960,981/ & Ik E &
0.107T 2 &L ABER )

BEXHBME £ 2
350,965,000 T & & (2 Mk
213,000 T2 EZREAEMERF
%) Bt ARR B Z RO AER -

All these shares issued during the year rank pari passu in all respects with the then FRNBETZAERNEZERZEFRNESH
existing shares. AEZERSHER °
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Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

26. RESERVES 26. f#E
Group r&EE

Convertible
notes Share

equity option  Warrant

Share Capital reserve reserve reserve  Translation Accumulated
premum  reserve AAREE  BRE AREZ  reserve losses Total

kAR EAEE REEE A WE Eikk ZAER i
HK$000  HK$000  HKFO000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Ten TRR TARL TET TEr  TET  TER  TAR

(Note a) (Note b)
(Rf3ta) (Bt b)

At | January 2007 RZZTt5-A—-H 291267 18273 = 3315 — —  (333890) (21035
Equity-settled IREER 2

share-based payment BRI — — — 5,656 — — — 5,656
Issue of shares under RERRE:E

share option scheme Bk 53,999 — — (8971 — — — 45028
Placement of new REMR

shares, net of Bk

expenses Fx 83,893 — — — — — — 83,893
Issue of warrants, BTRMRES -

net of expenses REIHER — — — — 72278 — — 72,278
Capital reorganisation, YN

net of expenses REIlY5 1,363,382 — — — — — — 1363382
Realised on disposal HE-FBEARAE

of an associate 2R = (8,198) = = = = = (8,198)
Expenses relating to the 317 RE A

issue and conversion BRER

of convertble notes EEZRY (8.750) — — — — — — (8.750)
Loss for the year FRER — — — — — —  (197582)  (197582)
At 31 December 2007  RZZTLE

+ZA=+-H 1,783,791 10,075 — — 72278 —  (531472) 1334672
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Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

26. RESERVES (Cont'd)

26. ftE (&)

Group iy |
Convertible
notes Share
equity  option  Warrant
Share  Capital ~ reserve  reserve  reserve Translation Accumulated
premium  reserve IRREE BRE FTREE  resere  losses Total
RiER E4G% RERE BE  BR ENRE ZER 4F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TErn TEn TExn TEx TFEx TEx TFER FER
(Note a) (Note b)
(Ht5ta) (R3Eh)
At | January 2008 R-ZENE-A-H 1,783,791 10,075 — - 178 —  (531,472) 1334672
Rights issues, net of expenses R EARRX 15() & (e)(v) 253,236 = = = = — — 253236
Placement of new shares, REHR -
net of expenses BENRRE 19,943 - - - - - — 1994
lssue of consideration shares EARERS
net of expenses BARFX 25(0) & (f) 35,840 — — — — - — 35840
lssue of shares upon termination St LT ARR T
of convertible notes, &i1fktn
net of expenses ENRRE 25,974 - - - - - — 25974
lssue of convertible notes, EANAREE
net of expenses EARREX — — 386 — — - — 384
Termination of convertible notes & 1FATART R — —  (38246) — — — —  (38246)
Capital reorganisations, EAEA -
net of expenses ENRRX B(e)v) & ()(v) 630470 = = = = — — 630470
Exchange movement ENERL
recognised during the year Eig - - - - - () - ()
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - —  (797.828) (797,828)
At 31 December 2008 R=BBNE+ZA=1-8 2749254 10,075 — - 178 (790) (1,329,300) 1,501,517
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Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

26. RESERVES (Contd) 26. f#fE (&)
Company ARAF
Convertible
notes

equity Warrant

Share  Share option reserve reserve Accumulated
premium reserve ARREE  RRES losses Total

BiviEE BRERE ERRE WE  REER M5t
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TRET TRT TRT TAT TRET TRET

(Note a) (Note b)
(P zta) (P D)
At | January 2007 R-BELE 291,267 3315 - . 405940)  (111,358)
—A—H

Equity-settled share- NREEEZ

based payment RIARR — 5,656 — — — 5,656
Issue of shares under  IRIBEHEARE T E

share option scheme BRI 53999 (8971) — — — 45,028
Placement of new shares, EREFTAR -

net of expenses EMRAR 83,893 — — — — 83,893
Issue of warrants, RITRRES

net of expenses BHKRRX — — — 72,278 — 72278
Expenses relating to T RERa

the issue and BREE

conversion of EXE

convertible notes bl 53 (8,750) = = = — (8,750)
Capital reorganisation, ~ A4S

net of expenses ENBRRAZ 1,363,382 — — — — 1,363,382
Loss for the year FRER — — — — (72,258) (72,258)
At 31 December 2007 RZZZtF

+=A=+-8 1783791 - - 72078 (478,198) 137787
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Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

26. RESERVES (Contd)

26. ftE (&)

Company (Contd) AQT (£)
Convertible
notes
equity Warrant
Share Share option reserve reserve Accumulated
Notes premium reserve ABRREE RRER losses Total
i RkORE BRERE BEZRE f#E RIER #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TERn TR TR TER
(Note a) (Note b)
CED) (M&Eb)
At | January 2008 RZTZTN\F
—A—H 1,783,791 = — 72,278 (478,198) 1,377,871
Rights issues, AR -
net of expenses EMBRAZ  25() & (¢)(vi) 253,236 = = = — 253,236
Placement of new REHMK -
shares, net of E bk
expenses A% 25(b) 19,943 — — — — 19,943
Issue of consideration 1T (E
shares, net of ‘i
expenses EMBRAET 250 & () 35,840 — — — — 35,840
Issue of shares upon  FhLAX [E A&
termination of BREEM
convertible notes, BB -
net of expenses EARFAX 25(g) 25,974 — — — — 25,974
Issue of convertible  E{7A[#
notes, net of BRER
expenses EMBRAY 24 — — 38,246 — — 38,246
Termination of & E A
convertible notes BEE 24 — — (38,246) — — (38,246)
Capital reorganisations, & 8548 -
net of expenses EMBREAZ 25(e)(v) &h)(Vv) 630,470 — — — — 630,470
Loss for the year FRER — — — —  (841,979)  (841,979)
At 3| December 2008 R=ZENF
+=B=+—-H 2,749,254 — — 72,278 (1,320,177) 1,501,355
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26.

27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RESERVES (Cont'd)
Notes:

(@) The application of the Company’s share premium account is governed by Section
48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(b) Pursuant to the warrants instrument executed by the Company on || October
2007, the Company issued 3,000,000,000 listed warrants conferring rights to
subscribe in aggregate for 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the
subscription price of HK$0.10 each, which was subsequently adjusted to
6,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at an adjusted subscription price of
HK18.20 each as a result of the exercises of rights issues and capital
reorganisations in the year of 2007 and 2008. The warrants were lapsed on 4
April 2009.

During the year, no warrant was exercised by the warrant holders.

() At the balance sheet date, the Company has no reserves available for distribution
to the shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the Group Reorganisation during 2002, a share option scheme
(“New Scheme”) of the Company was approved on 20 November 2002 by
the shareholders of the Company and became effective on 3 January 2003.The
New Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten years. The board of
directors of the Company may grant options to eligible employees including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries and any other persons including
consultants, advisors, agents, customers, suppliers, etc. to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide incentives to

award the participants who have made contributions to the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time, without prior approval from the
Company's shareholders. The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any |2 months period is not permitted to
exceed |% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time, without
prior approval from the Company's shareholders. Options granted to any
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of
their respective associates in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital in
issue and having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be subject

to prior approval by the Company's shareholders.

A M BRRNEE

Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

26. it (&)

27.

GGE

(@) AARRGOEERZERIEBRAIGK
BIEE48BIERE ©

b) WBEADAR-_ZZLFTA+—HE
BZRBREENE  ADRAB T
3,000,000,00017 i T 4 1| 7] 12 32 & (B
F[%0.107% 7t 3R 8 & ££3,000,000,000
BARA LB ETRBESE - AR
TR ERZTENFIEHBER
BARBHE WARENRABESR
18.2078 ;LR B AN A 7)6,000,000/% L@
e ZERBREERN_ZTAENA+
IOH KM »

R RBEEHAALBTETFR
RHERE o

(c) REFER ARRLEAEIRKTRR
2 e

BRESTE
BER-_TT_FETZEEER " K
RARRER-_ZET_F+—-—A=+H
BOE—TERARAEST 2 ([¥Et81)) - wR
“ET=F-AZHEM - FAERT
FRAEW - ARAEFEAREBRE
TEERERE (BREARAIREMNBAR
ZEE)REMAEMAL (BEFHAA
B RBA TP HERS) UR
BARARNG - M2 ERBHUAE
B{EHERc28EE -

AEARBIRRELBE - REFE
RUEZERERSR RN BHETGE
BARBPKEEITRMN 230% * AR
R+ AR BEAAK FEREAZE
REMPR2BRHE R TFRBARAT
TEBRITRNHZ1% MR FADRME
MEE FETHABSIFERRIE
FEBZHEABEAT ZBREMS R
ZROBEBRBAATEEITIRAZ
0.1% ' B # B {E # 5,000,000/ 7T
AN BEADNRIRREERE -

2008 % EFIEBRZERERAE

107



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI R

Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)
An amount of HK$ I is payable on the grant of an option. Options may be
exercised no later than ten years from the date of grant of the share option or
the expiry date of the New Scheme, if earlier. The exercise price is determined
by the directors of the Company, and will not be less than the highest of the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date of

grant and the nominal value of the shares on the date of grant.

No share option has been granted and exercised during the vyear or

outstanding at the balance sheet date.

28. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
(a) As detailed in note 25(c) to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group's acquisition of 100% equity interest in Allied Well at a
consideration of HK$20,160,000 was satisfied by the issuance of
160,000,000 new ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.126 per
share on 28 April 2008.

(b) As detailed in note 25(f) to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group's acquisition of 100% equity interest in Jet Star at a consideration
of HK$112,000,000 was satisfied by the issuance of 800,000,000 new
ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.14 per share on 28 October
2008.

(c) As detailed in note 25(g) to the consolidated financial statements,
650,000,000 new ordinary shares of the Company were issued as full and
final settlement for the termination of Convertible Notes on ||
September 2008.
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28.

BRESE (F)

BER DBREAXNUET - BiE
A EREBER S B At & 2R IER
HUAREERE) BTFATE - 76
BHEALRESREE ATERARA
BRREL BB ZBHE  ROREE
REBHMARERSE 2 FHRHER
BORKEBEHZAE=FF28%
%,

FRYERDRTERRE  SEAT
B ARITEZBRIE

TEERERS

(a) EREBBHMKMT25(c) T -
RZZZENERA-+N\B ' &%
BUEBE 2RSS REA
20,160,000 7T * A & #%0.126%
JL % 47160,000,0008% A& 22 A1 7 &
Rz AR o

(b) FREREMBRERM 25T
RZEZENFTAZT/N\B  &&
BlhERE s 28Es  KER
112,000,000 7T * §MR0.14% T
% 17800,000,0008% A& A A #7 & &
Rz AAZM -

(o) HiEraHBEMEME26(QMF -
RZFEENFAAT - BEST
650,000,000 A 12 =] # & A -
DERRIEAABRER Z2ERE

= At
R5E o



29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI

Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year, the Group acquired the entire equity interests in the following

companies.

Acquisition date

Name of acquired companies

29. WEEKTB 2 &)
FR - REBWEIAT AR Z2HRA

Place of

incorporation

Y
o

Principal activities

Purchase

consideration

KBRS P ER R A% A 2 30 B IERH BERE
Notes
(b
28 April 2008 Allied Well Development Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding and 25(c)
“ETNE with its subsidiary, Hostbest Limited KBRS roperty investment
( Y ) property
mA=+/N\R FERRBRAA REEBR R
( & E Bt B 22 A Hostbest Limited) NERE
3 June 2008 Uprite Limited British Virgin Islands Yacht owning (a)
—FEN\FRA=H RBRLES BAEER
7 July 2008 Glamourous Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding and 24
T N\EEAER  (withits subsidiary R E B A A - KBRS property investment
Wiseteam Assets Limited) REEKRK
NERE
7 July 2008 Best Inspire Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding and 24
“SEN\ELRtEH  (withits subsidiary R E B AF - RBERUHS property investment
Silver Target Limited) REERK
NERE
7 July 2008 Bright Majestic Limited British Virgin Islands Property investment 24
“TENEFELAER  (withits subsidiary REMB AR EBREUES MERE
Wealth Champion Limited)
27 August 2008 The Lost & Found Store Limited Hong Kong Property investment (b)
“EEN\FEN\A BB NERE
—++H
28 October 2008 Jet Star Industries Limited Hong Kong Property investment 25(f)
“BTNF RBEEXARAA] Bk NERE
+A=+N\AR
|8 November 2008 Fast Speed International Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding (c)
—zE)E AUEEERAT EERAES RELR
+—A /R

2008 % EFIEBRZERERAE
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29. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Notes:

(@) On 30 April 2008, the Group entered into an agreement with a third party to
acquire 100% interest in Uprite Limited at a consideration of HK$94,000,000

which was satisfied by cash.

(b) On 27 August 2008, the Group entered into an agreement with a third party to
acquire 100% interest in The Lost & Found Store Limited at a consideration of
HK$450,000 which was satisfied by cash.

(¢)  On 18 November 2008, the Group entered into an agreement with a third party
to acquire 100% interest in Fast Speed International Limited at a consideration of

HK$ 1,030,000 which was satisfied by cash.
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B &t

(a)

(b)

(c)

R-ZZZNEMA=10  KEEEF
= HFIM e - Wi Uprite LimitedZ
R  R{EA94,000,0004 7T + B
BeBfT -

R-ZZNENF-++RH RE@E
F=HEAE  WEThe Lost &
Found Store Limitedz 2 #p#Ezs - 1
{8 /53450,0008 7T + MRS HEA

RZZEZNF+—AT/\R ' REEH
E=FihE  WBAVBERERA
Az ER - KB R1,030,000%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)
The aggregate fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired
subsidiaries as at the dates of acquisition and their carrying value determined

in accordance with HKFRS immediately before combination are as follows:

A M BRRNEE

Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

29. WIEMIB AR (&)
BEAHA  REAVBREENET
FTERB AR &R EER B ERK
BEOZATHLERERAGDT :

Carrying value Fair value

fREE AVE

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET

Investment properties REWME 268,636 270,040

Property, plant and equipment ME - BB K&E 121,118 124,662

Other receivables H fty e 5K0R 31,866 31,866

Cash and cash equivalents BekBied 297 297

Other payables H f fE T 508 (203,942) (11,204)

Tax payables & 51 Bt 3K (827) (1,069)

Deferred tax liabilities EERBEE (14.571) (14,555)

Interest-bearing borrowings STEER (85,189) (85,189)

117,388 314,848

Discount on acquisition Ye g 2 #r40 (326)

Total consideration wRE 314,522
Satisfied by: ATO A A XA -

Cash Be 95,480

Issue of shares (Note 25(c) and (f)) BITRG (KR 25(c) & (f) 132,160

Issue of convertible notes (Note 24) BTARRER (M 24) 86,882

314,522

2008 % EFIEBRZERERAE
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Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

29. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

29. WEIBKHB A A (&)

Fair value
AT
HK$'000
FAT

REeR(E
B RERX
WENBAR RS FR

Cash consideration
Shares consideration expenses

Net cash acquired from the subsidiaries

(95,480)
(320)
297

ReR#E

Net cash outflow

(95,503)

Since the acquisition, the acquired subsidiaries made no significant contribution

to the revenue and results of the Group.

If the acquisition of subsidiaries effected during the year had been taken place
at the beginning of the year, the turnover and loss attributable to the Group
would have been HK$ 13,551,000 and HK$23,071,000 respectively.

30. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

BUWBIAR - BB RARYREAEEZ

BARREFHEXNER -

NERNEERBRAREENERETT  AIAEE
felh =¥ B R EEE DRI A13,551,000%8 T

% 23,071,000/ 7T °

30. HE—EHELTF

2008 2007
—EEN\F —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR THET

Net liabilities disposed of: BEHEZBEFE
Other payables H At & < 508 (491) —
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — N E 2 R 2 e 545 —
Total consideration arRE 54 —
Satisfied by cash AR & 2+ 54 —

Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of disposal of a

FRLE—RMBARIZHEE RREFERA

subsidiary is as follows: FESTMAT
2008 2007
“EBBNE —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Cash consideration ReRE 54 —
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31

COMMITMENTS 31.

Capital expenditure commitments

At the balance sheet date, the Group had the following capital commitments:

R
BARR AR

WEER  AEEALTERRE

2008 2007
—BENF —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Contracted but not provided, net of deposit B 7] B RN IR A B FSHREK AT
paid in the consolidated financial statements REGIUNKRENEZES 36,310 58,306

KeHNAE - 2REER/EEA
NEER  AEEREBRAZNER
REZTAHHELLEHONENRRER

Commitments under operating leases — the Group as lessee
At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of office premises

and equipment, which are payable as follows: ERSBEBEMT
2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Within one year —FRQ 79 466
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FZFLF (BEEEMF) 95 178
174 644

KelNAE - FREER/HEA
REER  RETAIHELEHORR
ARZEHRS@BQNT :

Commitments under operating leases — the Group as lessor
At the balance sheet date, the future aggregate minimum rental receivables

under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2008 2007

—BENF —TTLF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER FAET

Within one year —FR 16,838 285
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FZFLF (BEEEMF) 5,058 —
21,896 285
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At the balance sheet date, the Company had provided corporate guarantees
for banking facilities amounting to HK$296,488,000 (2007: HK$216,920,000)
granted to its subsidiaries, which were utilised to the extent of
HK$250,951,000 (2007: HK$191,648,000). The directors assessed the overall
exposure of the corporate guarantees granted by the Company and
considered that the fair value of such corporate guarantees is immaterial to

the financial statements of the Company.

33. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At the balance sheet date, certain assets of the Group with the following
carrying values have been pledged to secure general banking facilities granted

to the Group:

32.

33.

HAEE

REER - AARERENB AR
B2 R1TH & 296,488,000 T (ZEF
4 216,920,000/ 7T ) 1R 1 B 4E
& HREEMEE /250,951,000 T
—TT L4 1 191,648,000 T) - EE
TRARAABEHZARERZEBR
g RRZERAERZATEREA
] 2 B RS R B A

EEHHA

REER  AKEREENTZETE
ECERRTAREZ - RRTREL
B

2008 2007

—BENF —TTLF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER FAT

Leasehold land and buildings HOTHREF 72,917 19,872
Investment properties REME 491,050 324,000
Yacht i i 72,000 —
635,967 343,872
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34, BEALRS
BEEEANBRRAREEN A%
BRERETZBEALR ST -

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Other than disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the

following related party transactions were entered into by the Group during

the year:

(a) Properties of the Group with net book value of HK$43,713,000 (2007: (a) AEEKREFERL3,713,000E T
HK$19,872,000) are occupied by a brother of a director of the Company —ETLF :19,872,000F L) 2
for free. MERARA—LEZIRARE

15R -

(b) Compensation of key management personnel b)) TEBEEEBAS 25

ENBTESREMTIRERE

The remuneration of executive directors and other members of key

management during the year is as follows: KEZMEWT :
2008 2007
—EEBN\F —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RUREYME 4,360 4713
Long service payment RER%® 298 —
Contributions to MPF Scheme 5818 & 5t &l it K 51 60
4,709 4773

The remuneration of directors and key management is reviewed by the EENTECEE M BEME
Bg2E AR ZRARTSIES

B HR -

Remuneration Committee having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends.

(c) During the year, a personal guarantee of HK$20,000,000 (2007: Nil) was () ER ARF—LZESEZEILAEAR
ARMBARMERRITRE RHY
& A #1%20,000,0008 ¢ (= F

tF ) o

provided by a brother of a director of the Company for a banking facility
granted to a subsidiary of the Company.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES 35. BREREERBERER

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise of
interest-bearing bank and other loans, cash and short-term deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise and maintain finance for the
Group's operations. The Group has various other financial instruments such as
loans receivable, other receivables and payables, and financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, which arise directly from its

business activities.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate
risk, foreign currency risk, equity price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group does not have any written risk management policies and guidelines
except for loans receivable. However, the board of directors generally adopts
conservative strategies on its risk management and limit the Group's exposure
to these risks to a minimum. The board of directors reviews and agrees

policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s cash and short-term deposits, interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings and loans receivable. The Group does not use derivative

financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk.

At the balance sheet date, if interest rates had been 150 basis points higher or
lower while all other variables were held constant, the Group's net loss would
increase or decrease by approximately HK$736,000 and HK$3,450,000
respectively (2007: approximately HK$2,664,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for all financial instruments in existence at
that date. The 150 basis points increase or decrease represents management's
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual balance sheet date. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2007.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk because of securities
investments listed outside Hong Kong, derivatives financial instruments and
other receivables from a broker, which are denominated in foreign currencies,
principally the US dollar. Management considers that the Group has limited
exposure to foreign currency risk since such financial instruments are not

significant at the balance sheet date.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from trading of listed
securities and unlisted convertible bonds classified as investments held for
trading and investments designated as at fair value upon initial recognition in
the consolidated balance sheet. The sensitivity analysis has been determined

based on the exposure to equity price risk.

At the balance sheet date, if the quoted market prices of the trading securities
had been 5% higher or lower while all other variables were held constant, the
Group's net loss would decrease or increase by approximately HK$53,943,000
(2007: approximately HK$80,605,000) as a result of changes in fair value of
investments. The Group's sensitivity to equity price has changed significantly

from the prior year.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the reasonably
possible changes in the stock market index or other relevant risk variables had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the exposure to
equity price risk in existence at that date. It is also assumed that the fair values
of the Group's investments would change in accordance with the historical
correlation with the relevant stock market index or the relevant risk variables,
that none of the Group’s securities investments would be considered impaired
as a result of a reasonably possible decrease in the relevant stock market index
or other relevant risk variables, and that all other variables remain constant.
The stated changes represent management's assessment of reasonably possible
changes in the relevant stock market index or the relevant risk variables over
the period until the next annual balance sheet date. The analysis is performed

on the same basis for 2007.

Year ended 3| December 2008 {2 =
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PENEHoAST-ALEE

35. BREREEEEREE (£)

s B

AEBRAFBUANE (FBR/AXT)FHE
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Rl ERNZSeRIARGERLHE
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AR

R ERER
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35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to loans receivable. The
carrying amount of these balances substantially represent the Group’s

maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date.

Management has money lending policies in place and the exposure to the
credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. The Group provides financial
services only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s
policy that all customers who wish to borrow money are subject to credit

verification procedures.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each borrower. The default risk of the industry and country in
which borrowers operate also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser
extent. At the balance sheet date, the Group had a concentration of credit risk
as 36% (2007: 57%) of the total loans receivable was due from the Group's

five largest borrowers.

The Group has limited credit risk with its money deposited in financial
institutions and brokers, which are leading and reputable and are assessed as
having low credit risk. The Group has not had any significant loss arising from
non-performance by these parties in the past and management does not

expect so in the future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI

Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES 35. ¥ EREEEERKXE (&)

(Cont'd)
Liquidity risk REBESER
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding AEEZERREBNBRITRAME
and flexibility through the use of bank and other borrowings. The Group HoEESUEEMEBERU ZRARET
closely monitors its exposure to liquidity risk by reviewing the cash position - "EBGHENREMAEE B
report daily. It analyses efficiency of fund management. The maturity profile of DEERBEeRR - AEEEHME
the Group's financial liabilities at the balance sheet date based on contractual SEBENG  NEER  KEBUKA
undiscounted payments are summarised below: ERENRTRENFEFE 22 HIE
Bt
On  Less than 3-12 Over
demand 3 months months  2-5 years 5 years Total
BEXR SR3EA 32128 225  BHEML ast
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET Ti#n TER TER TER TER
Year ended BE-Z2BN\F
31 December 2008 +=A
=t-HILEFE
Interest-bearing
borrowings EER = 5,409 26,902 119,382 197,623 349,316
Derivative financial TSR
instruments TH
— Securities derivatives - BHTEIE — 14,903 12,444 — — 27,347
Other payables H fth JE 15 5XIE 14,768 6,974 1,500 — = 23242
Tax payables FER K = = 1,237 = — 1,237

14,768 27,286 42,083 119,382 197,623 401,142

008 4% EAERZERERAT 119



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRNEE

Year ended 3| December 2008 Z—ETN\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

35. BREREEEEREE (£)

(Cont'd)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd) RBESRR (&)
On  Less than 3-12 Over
demand 3 months months  2-5 years 5 years Total
mER LRIEA 3E12fHA 2E5F  5FNE a5t
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
TET TET TET TET TET TET
Year ended BE_TTLHF
31 December 2007 +t=ZA=+—H
IEFE
Interest-bearing
borrowings TEER — 153,212 15,588 73972 160,644 403416
Derivative financial fTESH
instruments TA
— Securities derivatives ~ —FEHFHTETLE — 15,313 61,818 — — 77,131
— Forward foreign — R HISNE
exchange contracts &k
Cash outflow Bend — 2,281 2,787 — — 5,068
Cash inflow BeamA — (2,370) (2,896) — — (5,266)
Other payables Ho At FE R 5R0R 3,638 9,652 — — — 13,290
3,638 178,088 77297 73972 160,644 493,639

120  WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2008 Annual Report




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI

Year ended 3| December 2008 HZ—ZT\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES 35. ¥ EREEEERKXE (&)

(Cont'd)

Capital management EXER

The objectives of the Group's capital management are to safeguard the entity’s AEEEAEBZEERREERZE
ability to continue as a going concern and to provide returns for shareholders. BB NI RABREREER - A5 E
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments, including EERBEEEALRE  ERERRFER
payment of dividend to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue B RARREHFRARETHRS L E
new shares or sell assets to reduce debts. No changes were made in the BEWRPAR REBEZTTN\FK
objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December 2008 —ETHFET_A=+-BLFE" A
and 2007. BER  BRREFHEZE -

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio, which is net debt AEERBEER AL X (B EFER
divided by total equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain a stable gearing ratio. DERGRE) ERERER - $E§Zﬁ
The gearing ratios at the balance sheet date were as follows: RRRERBR EERRILE - NEE

HZEERR ET%WJZZIJT

2008 2007

—EENE ZTTEF

HK$°000 HK$'000

THERT FHETT

Interest-bearing borrowings STEER 293,421 341,648
Less: Cash and cash equivalents o RekBReER (167,057) (304,355)
Net debt BREFHE 126,364 37,293
Total equity B 1,540,513 486,465
Gearing ratio EERMBLEX 8.2% 2.5%

36. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 36. LLEBEF
Certain comparative figures regarding the turnover and other income in the BRAEANEENENAR  BEKRER
consolidated income statement, have been reclassified to conform with the REBEEBRREMKRAZE THERE
current year's presentation. FTEEHDME o
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Summary of Financial Information

BBEREE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements

and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below.

ATRASERBERBMBRFRE 2 XERE

ERERE  HWIRREEER

TREZEHDE -

FAMBERER

RESULTS E
Year ended 3| December
BE+t-A=1+-HLEE

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
ZE2BNE C_"ITT+H C"TTRFE _TTLF _TTNWF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TET TET TAET
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(E31) (E31) (E31) (E3)
Turnover ¥R (341,209) 104,928 2,192 (8,998) 5,388
Loss before taxation BREIAIEE (786,745) (197,582) (114,761) (131,715) (336,868)
Taxation i 18 (11,083) — — — —
Loss for the year FRER (797,828) (197,582) (114761) (131,715) (336,868)
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Summary of Financial Information

pL- BN
MBERRE
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
ZEBBNE C"TTtHE C"TTRE _TTLF _TITNF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TAET TET TAET TAET
Investment properties REME 609,814 326,500 7,200 9,650 11,930
Property, plant and mE - BB R
equipment B 194,961 35,049 22,977 22,391 39,177
Intangible assets BREE 131,879 134,626 — — —
Interests in associates Bt N AR s — — 98,118 238,549 181,113
Other financial asset HB g &= — — — 7,143 =
Other investments Hinig & 123,521 113,965 — — —
Prepayments for acquisition ~ Y(EEIR B W3
of investment properties FENRIE 5,304 8,656 — — —
Loans receivable FEUE X 15,720 — — — —
Current assets mE & E 814,923 1,229,522 232,856 66,464 53,715
Current liabilities mEa R (61,133) (181,197) (15,749) (18,860) (171,033)
1,834,989 1,667,121 345,402 325,337 114,902
Equity holders’ funds BEFAEAES 1,540,513 1,486,465 329,614 311,567 91,451
Long term interest- =3 )
bearing borrowings & 269,037 180,656 15,788 13,770 23,451
Deferred tax liabilities BELERBEE 25,439 — — — —
1,834,989 1,667,121 345,402 325,337 114,902
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Particulars of Properties Held by the Group
REBRE ZMEFE

(A) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (A) REME
Description Use Lease term
1t 3 R# B
Jifu Plaza, Commercial Medium term
No. 103 Shibapu Road, EES 5

Liwan District,

Guangzhou City,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
PEAREME

BN

T AEH# 103 %

KEAE

Unit | (also known as House No. A), Residential Medium term
Sunshine Villa, X mh 4

No. 48 Mount Kellett Road,

The Peak, Hong Kong

BEIITR

ANl i 48 55

BRtieE 1 B (k8 ARIE)

House No. 6 Somerset Path, Residential Medium term
8 Kam Tsin South Road, F= A Ef
The Royal Oaks,

Sheung Shui, New Territories

AR LK
MR E T
S Em I 85K

RMEL65E

124 WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2008 Annual Report




Particulars of Properties Held by the Group
REBIFE 2YEFE

(A) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd) (A) BREWE (B)
Description Use Lease term
TR Jick = A8
36B, Tower 8, Bel-Air on the Peak, Residential Medium term
and Car Parking Space L5 - 152, T=E 5
Island South, Hong Kong

EYEEE8EIBER
{2E ML L5-152

All car parking spaces on 2nd Floor, 3rd Floor Car park Long term
and 5th floor, China United Centre, FEfL =31

No. 28 Marble Road,

North Point, Hong Kong

BiEitA

HEE 28 %

EEPL2E  3BRSEMBFEN

Room 2201-2203 & Room 2205-2209, Commercial Long term
22nd Floor, China United Centre, [EES R

28 Marble Road,

North Point, Hong Kong

B A

BFEE28H

ZEHL 2218 2201-2203 E K 2205-2209 =

26th Floor, China United Centre, Commercial Long term
28 Marble Road, GES &
North Point, Hong Kong

BiEiLA

SHEE 285

EEAH L) 26 12

29th Floor, China United Centre, Commercial Long term
28 Marble Road, GES 31
North Point, Hong Kong

BELA

FEIE 285

EERD 2918
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Particulars of Properties Held by the Group

AREBFA 2 MEFS

(A) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Contd) (A) REWE (&)
Description Use Lease term
A 3t 1t R& A4
30th Floor, China United Centre, Commercial Long term
28 Marble Road, EES =31
North Point, Hong Kong
BigitA
HEE 285

FEEF L) 3048

31st Floor; China United Centre, Commercial Long term
28 Marble Road, [EES =31
North Point, Hong Kong

BEiLA

FEIE 285

EEFL3E

Room 3203, 32nd Floor, Commercial Long term
China United Centre, EES =31

28 Marble Road,

North Point, Hong Kong

BiEiLA

HEE 285

EEP.O 32183203 E
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Particulars of Properties Held by the Group
REBIFE 2YEFE

(A) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Contd) (A) BREWE (B)
Description Use Lease term
E=F R R# A8
Flat A on I5th and |6th Floors and Residential Long term
car parking space No. | on ground floor, T=E R

Formwell Garden,

Nos. 46-48 Blue Pool Road,

Hong Kong
BB
ERE 46 E 4858

EMBIGRI6EAER
R 1 SRS E AL

Flat C8, 26th Floor, Block C, Residential Long term
Elizabeth House, F= =31

Nos. 250-254 Gloucester Road,

Causeway Bay,

Hong Kong

BB

S 8 /8 15 97 38 250-254 %%

FRHARE CE 261 C8=E

Unit A on 2nd Floor and Residential Long term
car parking space No.3| on lower ground floor, T=x R
Hatton Place,

No. IA Po Shan Road,

Hong Kong

B

BiflE 1A%

B 56218 A B Rt NEE 31 SRIFEAL
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Particulars of Properties Held by the Group
REBRE ZMEFE

(B) LEASEHOLD LAND AND BUILDINGS (B) N REF
Description Use Lease term
A 3t 1t Jick = A4
Duplex flat A on 21st and 22nd Floor together Residential Medium term
with a portion of roof thereabove and car parking T=E 5

space No. 33, Royalton,

No. |18 Pok Fu Lam Road,

Pok Fu Lam, Hong Kong

BEFRM

HHRME 11857

RIE21ER 22 BEXEN AZER
HE®MARERIBHEEEN

Flat B on 22nd Floor together with a portion Residential Medium term
of roof thereabove and car parking space No.22, F=E 1 HR
Royalton, |18 Pok Fu Lam Road,

Pok Fu Lam, Hong Kong

BEFRM

HRME 11857

g 22 BEERE LA

RER 22 FEER
Room 3201 & 3202, 32nd Floor, Commercial Long term
China United Centre, EES R

28 Marble Road,

North Point, Hong Kong
EEiLA

FEE 285

FEEH D 3218 3201 & 3202 =
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